Kashia School District

31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax

J

1.

Special Agenda —
Governing School Board
Wednesday, February 16, 2022 4:00 p.m.
Classroom, Kashia School District

Call to Order Board and Staff/Establishment of Quorum

Glenda Antone Frances Johnson
Rick Parrish
Charlene Pinola Patti Pomplin
2. Approval of Agenda
3. Public Comment on Non Agenda Items (Limit 5 Minutes)
4. Communications
4.1  SCOE - 15t Interim Approval Letter
5. Consent Agenda

5.1  Approve January 12, 2022 Board Minutes
5.2  Approve January Vendor Warrants

Reports and Communications

6.1  Governing Board Members
6.2  Superintendent

6.3 Business Manager

6.4 PTO

Items Scheduled for Information and Discussion
7.1 Discuss Attendance Strategies
7.2 Review Supplemental LCAP Report

Items Scheduled for Discussion and Action

8.1  Adopt Board Policies
BP 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan
BP 3516.5 Emergency Schedules
BP4131 Staff Development
BP 6120 Response to Instruction and Intervention
BP 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education
AR 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education
BP 6164.41 Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private
School
AR 6164.41 Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private
School
BP 6164.5 Student Success Teams
AR 6164.5 Student Success Teams

8.2  Approve Budget Updates

8.3  Approve Year 1 of 3 Auditor Contract

—— A —————ee




Kashia School District
31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax

9. Items Scheduled for Future Board Meetings
9.1  Board Policies
9.2  Budget Updates
9.3 Hire New Employees

10. Adjournment

Next Regular Meeting
Wednesday, March 9, 2022



Kashia School District
31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax

Special Agenda —
Governing School Board
Wednesday, February 9, 2022 4:00 p.m.
Office, Kashia School District

1. Call to Order Board and Staff/Establishment of Quorum

Glenda Antone Frances Johnson
Rick Parrish
Charlene Pinola Patti Pomplin
2. Approval of Agenda
3. Public Comment on Non Agenda Items (Limit 5 Minutes)
4. Communications
4.1 SCOE - 15t Interim Approval Letter
5. Consent Agenda
5.1  Approve January 12, 2022 Board Minutes
5.2  Approve January Vendor Warrants
6. Reports and Communications
6.1  Governing Board Members
6.2  Superintendent
6.3 Business Manager
6.4 PTO
7. Items Scheduled for Information and Discussion
7.1 Discuss Attendance Strategies
7.2 Review Supplemental LCAP Report
Items Scheduled for Discussion and Action
8.1  Adopt Board Policies
BP 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan
BP 3516.5 Emergency Schedules
BP4131 Staff Development
BP 6120 Response to Instruction and Intervention
BP 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education
AR 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education
BP 6164.41 Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private
School
AR 6164.41 Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private
School
BP 6164.5 Student Success Teams
AR 6164.5 Student Success Teams
8.2  Approve Budget Updates
8.3  Approve Year 1 of 3 Auditor Contract




Kashia School District

31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax
e

9. Items Scheduled for Future Board Meetings
9.1  Board Policies
9.2  Budget Updates
9.3  Hire New Employees

10. Adjournment

Next Regular Meeting
Wednesday, March 9, 2022



O« Sonoma County
) Office of Education

5340 Skylane Boulevard
January 14, 2022 Santa Rosa, CA 95403-8246
(707) 524-2600 m www.scoe.org
Frances Johnson, Superintendent
Kashia School District
312510 Skaggs Springs Road
Stewarts Point, CA 95480

Dear Ms. Johnson,

In accordance with Education Code Section 42131, a review of Kashia School District's (District)
First Interim Report for Fiscal Year 2021-22 has been completed by the Sonoma County Office
of Education (County). The District self-certified its 2021-22 First Interim Report as Positive.
After a review of the financial data provided by the District, it appears that the District will meet
its financial obligations for the current and two subsequent years. Therefore, the County
concurs with the District’s positive certification.

State Budget
The 2021-22 enacted State Budget resulted in robust investments in addressing learning

opportunities for students during the pandemic. The Budget Act provided both ongoing and
one-time funding for LEAs across the state through increased concentration grant components
of Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), several new or revised Special Education funding
streams, new Educator Effectiveness Block Grant, A-G Completion Improvement Grant, and
Expanded Learning Opportunities. Additionally, the Budget Act added a requirement for LEAs
to provide a one-time Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) supplement for boards and
educational partners to review by February 28, 2022. The mid-year Supplement Report relates
to the one-time and ongoing dollars provided through the 2021-22 Budget Act and the American
Rescue Plan Act. The State Budget adoption also included major impacts on subsequent fiscal
years by including implementation of Universal Transitional Kindergarten and Universal meals
beginning in 2022-23.

As a result of the ongoing pandemic, education has received an influx of one-time funding in
both fiscal year 2020-21 and 2021-22, which has very few restrictions and therefore, will create
tremendous pressure to spend the money in a variety of areas. LEAs are urged to attach these
one-time sources to one-time costs versus on-going costs. It is the County’s recommendation
that LEAs remain cautious, avoid structural deficit spending, maintain adequate reserves, and
think long-term.

First Interim and Multi-Year Projection (MYP)

The District’s First Interim Report MYP, projects an increase in unrestricted fund balance of
$44,038, $927, and $1,342 in 2021-22, 2022-23, and 2023-24, with the State minimum reserve
for economic uncertainty of $71,000 met in all years.

Steven D Herrington, Ph D ™ Superintendent of Schools
Board of Education ®m Gina Cuclis, Herman G Hernandez, Peter Koslas, Andrew Leonard, Lisa Wilttke Schaffner



Based on the First Interim Report, the District projects Average Daily Attendance (ADA) to
decrease to 6.75 in 2021-22 before increasing to a projected 9.5 in 2022-23 and 2023-24. Per
Education Code 35780, a school district must maintain six ADA in grades 1 through 8 to avoid

lapsation.

Summary
Our Office appreciates the preparation and timely submittal of your First Interim report. A

technical review will be communicated to the business office. The Second Interim Report is due
to our office no later than March 15, 2022. Please see the attached for standard reminders. If
you have any questions, please feel free to call me at (707) 524-2635.

Sincerely,

Sarah Lampenfeld
Director, External Fiscal Services

c:
Patti Pomplin, District Chief Business Official

Steven D. Herrington, PhD., County Superintendent of Schools
Greg Medici, SCOE Deputy Superintendent, Business Services
Cindy Gordon, SCOE District Fiscal Management Advisor



Kashia School District
Minutes
Board Meeting, January 12, 2022

1. Meeting called to order at 4:13 by Board President Charlene Pinola
Roll Call: Trustee Glenda Antone, Trustee Rick Parrish, Trustee Charlene Pinola
Staff: Frances Johnson, Patti Pomplin
Community: None

2. Approval of Agenda: Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Antone and
passed unanimously by the Board to approve the agenda as presented.

3. Public Comment on Non Agenda Items - None

4. Communication
4.1 CRDC Certification
4.2 EASIE Registration for 2022-23

5. Consent Agenda
Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Parrish and passed unanimously by
the Board to approve the consent agenda as presented.
5.1 Approve December 8 2021 and December 13, 2021 Board Minutes
5.2 Approve December Vendor Warrants
5.3 October 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 Williams Quarterly Report

6. Reports and Communications

6.1 Governing Board — Trustees signed form 700’s.

6.2 Superintendent — Skip at Indian Health presented a suicide prevention
workshop; Roland Pesch and Kath Rosskopf donated $2000 towards
attendance incentives; working with Janet MacKinnon on Sea Ranch grant to
put up the green house and buy plants; kids being wonderful; two new
students; attendance improving greatly; all students tested for COVID - all
negative.

6.3 Business Manager — keeping up.

6.4 PTO — None

7. Items Scheduled for Information and Discussion

7.1 Second Reading Board Policies
BP 0470 COVID-19 Mitigation Plan
BP 3516.5 Emergency Schedules
BP4131 Staff Development
BP 6120 Response to Instruction and Intervention
BP 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special
Education
AR 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special
Education
BP 6164.41 Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private
School



AR 6164.41 Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private
School
BP 6164.5 Student Success Teams
AR 6164.5 Student Success Teams

7.2 Review Safety Plan
Due to Kashia’s location and student population, during an actual
emergency, parents would come to school and pick up their children.

7.3  Discuss Attendance Strategies
Possible financial reward for over 9% attendance. Need ideas for parent
buy in and full year/partial year attendance etc.

8. Items Scheduled for Discussion and Action

8.1 Approve 2020-21 Audit Report
Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Parrish and passed
unanimously by the board to approve the 2020-21 audit report as presented.

8.2 Approve 2020-21 SARC (School Accountability Report Card)
Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Parrish and passed
unanimously by the board to approve the 2020-21 SARC with the
understanding that the State was still uploading information so State
information would be changing. DTS will upload required updates as
necessary.

9. Items Scheduled for Future Board Meetings.
9.1 Board Policies
9.2 Budget Updates
9.3 Hire New Employees
9.4 Attendance Strategies

10. Meeting Adjourned at 4:49

Next Regular Meeting
Wednesday, February 9, 2022

Respectfully submitted: Patti Pomplin

Signed .//}f-zf@/‘/ ‘4 Lﬁ’&h

/ Glenda Antone, Clerk




Wdl1:Z 220z L€ uer (NITdINOdd) uldwod med 10} pajesuss

3y} Jey} PSpUSLLLLIODS] St]| "SSB)SNIL JO PIEOY BY} JO UOHEZLIOYINE pue ADIjod S

Z 10| 8beyg
- ANITNO EEERSEYE
SeTLzL'SL 9z $}99YD jo J3qunN [ejo)
86'6E1L I¥4226000€
00°'8Ey Buiues)o yodies
09891 G882 Jamolq jes)
G168 109(oid Jepdisied
66'6¢ 408} WOOISSEJD
vl sonb | z/62/60
86'6£L L¥1/26000€
00°095'1L 1202 1aqwaosp
0C'9z9'9 z2-1202
eL'lel €EEYSOZLBI
19°69 €0-€.eZ1uUd
» G£°86¢C 09'89} Iamojq Jes|
. G.68 108loud sedioien
11°80T 1G98 SG0EELEBEYE
08¢l 111990.96¢€6
ov'sel 12/8€CEPERT
00'1Le |emausal
80601 359Ud pojepalelS
0€°.S solddns wooisse[o
00°00€ 8ouBUB)UIBW Joquua)des
86°6C1 L¥1226000€
or'€9¢ ¢SL116SC
60°L€C yrA] GS0ECLEBEYD
12°84} L 179902966
8c'sel LL28€ECEYERT
62'6C) by /250216
05'19¢ G2012800¢
0070092 yosads JaquiaroN
00°06 dn yoid |eaw
00081 yoley o) Asenuer 009-v/8 ® 665-v.8
00°S6¢ 98} £Z0¢ Aenigsy 0y Aienigsy
00°000°4 S - ) el Ayuow
Jjunowy junowy usawIwo?)
Noayo pasuadx3g

Hoday pieog

¢E95-10
0085-10
08e¥-10
olLer-10
oveEy-10
oLeEr-10
¢€95-10
2085-10
8€8G-10
0965-10
¢e95-10

pajjeauen

02¢5S-10
oLev-lo
S156-10
0Ler-10
0085-10
€€96-10
096S-10

0255-10
6656710
0155610
2085-1L0
008S-10
Z£85-10
0085-10
08510

302lq0-pung

BlYysey - 9y0

‘pancidde eq sxyoeun buipa
JOLISIJ BU) YlIM SOUBPIODOE Uy PaNsS| Usaq aAeY Sioeys Buipsoeid oy

IS Ul JopudaA obied sjiap
Buiues|p 10die) oid-sioyg

uijdwod med

uosuYo saouel

unooseH uipiN uolybnoH
AIBG Ul Jopuap obled s|lopp
9dS

P33 JO 820 AJUNOD BLUOUOS
uuey ewouos Abojoooy
Auedwon) uebliop Aey

2202/ L/ 0 VO pajjeoued

uiidwod med

o11108[3 B SED) OB
suizebey sejdoad aAneN
psIa ssnn elysey
UoSUYyof saoueld

ojnuepy abiosg

ABg UIJ Jopusp obie s|japn
uuely ewouos ABojodsy

Oujo9(3 R Seg dllded
1daq wawdojaas( jusLuAoldiug
sebusury

9dS
seloep M siouel

ouj swiely ¥ 4s3

aolneg Bupjoel | Juswnooq

Buninsuon ABojouyos] Ay

J0 18pIQ 3y} 0} Aed

[AAVALTAITY)
¢e02/9¢/10

¢c0e/9z/Lo
¢20¢/92/L0
[AAVAL TR0
ccoc/eL/Lo
¢e0c/eL/Lo
¢c0c/6L/L0
¢c0cC/64/L0
[AAV A 7R

¢c0c/6L/L0

¢e0z/6LL0
¢c0c/6L/L0
¢coe/6lL/Lo
[AAVALIIRY
¢20c/6L/L0
ceocic/lo
[AAVA[ATINY

FAAAANINY
220Z/ZLIL0
zz02/z /10
220Z/S0/L0
2202/50/L0
zz0z/50/10
2202/50/10
2z0z/50/1.0

o1eqg
NEETTES)

aaJd

06€./81
68€./81

88€./81
1881781
98¢2/81
6v€9.81
81c9.8l
1y€9.81
9re9/8)
Sve9/8l

vre9/8l

£vE9/81
crealel
L¥€8481
0veo/8l
B6EC9/81
L21S.81
0clsi8l

611G.8L
8116/81
2115281
642€181
81.€481
117€481
92/€/81
G1/E18)
JaquinN
399Yo

ZZ0Z/1€/10 UBNoau) Z20Z/10/L0 PaJRQ SH29YD

ozl Aegbay




WdL1:Z 2202 L€ Uer (NITDINOJd) udwod med 1o pajersuss elysey - 9y0

‘panoidde ag syoay) Bujpesaid

'

JdY¥ZS3 B4} 1B} pSpUBLLLIODaI ST Y| "$33]SNI L JO pJEOg 8Y} JO UOIBZLIOYINE PUE ADIjOd S,101181(] 8U] YIM 20UBPIOIDE ur panssi usaqg aaey syosys buipesaid ay |
00°E9¥'s) (lunowy ¥23y9) 3oN
00 Aungert xe] sejeg piedun sse
00°€91'Gl *14 $H98YD J0 JequinN [B10L
00°€9t'GlL *14 pun4 [eseussy L0
junowy pasuadx3y Junoo yd8y9n uondussag pung
Aewwng pung
S9v0Z'Sl anss| 18N
0915 | |8oUB))
unouwy wunooH
[ E:o.:._|< ..«ﬂ:oE< . i u.:wEEoo ] uommnwuvcsm_- : = J0 13piQ 3Y) mu.»mn_ = i |3mo ._on_sz
3o8yo pasuadx3g ¥o3uoH ¥o9yo

ZT0z/1€/10 ubnoauy 2z0z/10/1L0 PRIEA SH92YD

Joday pieog ozl Aedbay



February 16, 2022
Kashia Board of Trustees
PO Box 129

Stewarts Point. CA 95480

The Kashia School Board of Trustees wishes to have the Teacher/Aide remaining
funds of $89, 791 to be dispersed in the following way:

Superintendent/Principal Frances Johnson is to be paid for her additional work. As
an essential worker she has taken on two additional jobs in addition to her own
administrative position because of the Teacher/Aide resignations. We would like
her to be paid her contracted salary rate for her off calendar days and the other
teaching days to be paid at a rate of $200 per day. This creates a surplus for the
school of approximately $50,000.

The remaining funds are to be placed in a special account to establish an
Attendance Incentive Fund. When Robert Kennedy visited Kashia School back in
the 60’s shortly before his death, he emphasized the importance of Kashia School
and the need to create better attendance. He was committed to this endeavor
and it is only right that Kashia School uses the surplus created by Ms. Frances
taking on extra work to fund this Incentive Program.

Sincerely,

Glenda Antone

Rick Parrish

Char Pinole

Kashia Board of Trustees

Attachment: Teacher/Aide Remaining Funds: $89,791



Sonoma County Office of Education Mail - Amy & Audrey 2/3/22, 9:27 AM

& Sonoma County
M

€ Office. of Education Frances Johnson <fjchnson@scoe.org>

Amy & Audrey

1 message
Patti Pomplin <ppomplin@kashiaesd.org> Thu, Feb 3, 2022 at 7:27 AM
To: Frances Johnson <fjohnson@scoe.org>
Budgeted Paid Difference
Amy - Salary 61,917 18,171
STRS 10,476 3,075
Medical 10,656 2,496
Payroll 3,096 623
TOTAL $86,145 $24,365 $61,780
Audrey - Salary 25,938 4,877
PERS 5,942 1,117
Payroll 2,504 469
Medical o o
TOTAL  $34,474 $6,463 $28,011
Patti Pomplin, CBO
Kashia School District

PO Box 129
Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-321-5849

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=ea18e4543b&view=pt&search...%3A17237562404493624708&simpl=msg-f%3A1723756240449362470&mb=1 Page 1 of 1



GJo | ebeq 1ousIq |ooyog Alejusiug|3 BIYSEY Jof Juawalddng qvo Z2-1Z02

"sainjipusdxa |euojippe 1o} sueld ou sey os spuny ||| Y3SST 1o} 2|qibije Jou S| BIYSEY

“uonejuswaidwi Buunp psousuadxe sebus|ieys pue sasseoons ay; pue ‘ueld ainypusadxa Joloy Aousbiawg
|ooyds Alepuodss pue Alejuswis|J [Biopa) pue 1oy Uejd Sndsay UBolswy |elspa) ay) Bunuswajdwi sI y37 8y} moy jo uonduosep vy

"aqli L 8y} woly Apoauip 10 sasjsnu) JO pJeoq au}
yBnoayy suop Ajlensn si UNOY Jequ L ay; woly poddng 1RSI [00YDS BIYSEY IO} S|qelieAe Siauped [BUOHEINDS |EDO| JUSLIND JOU 8Je I8y |

sjidnd uo Buiutes| souejsip Jo sjoedwi ay) pue oiwaspued §1-AIAQD Sy Wwolj A1aaodal poddns
O} Papusiul aie Jey) paAISdal Spuny [e1sps) sSlul}-auo Jo asn 8y} Uo sisuped [euoieonps sy pabebus 37 sy} usym pue moy Jo uonduosap v

*19Yoea} uoneonps |e1oads swiy ped
B SE ||om Se Uelpoisno/ople payisse|d swi Led ‘Jayoes) awi [} B yjoq 4o} ulor p3 uo pajsod sqof yjim Jequisiu Jels auo sey Ajjualind eiysey

"Jusolad GG uey) 1sjealb si jey) YyinoA 1s)soy
10/pue ‘sisules| ys!|bu3z ‘OOdUI-MO| BJE OYM SJUSPNIS JO JUBWI|OIUD UB Yim S8sNdWED [00YIS UO SJuspnis 0} $90I1AIBS J08.Ip apinold oym yers
JO Jequinu 8y} eseaudul 0} paAiadal § Buipuny uo-ppe juelb uoleuadUoD Jeuolippe sy} ‘esn o) sueld Jo ‘pash Y3 sy} Moy Jo uonduosep v

"901J0 [equ ] 8y} Aq pajussaid se yons sjusas |ooyds Buunp Jo siequisw Ayunwwos/siap|e/siusied
U)M SUO UO SUO JBUIS SBUOP 818 SUOHEDIUNLIWOD JSO "PUB] |G} JO S|PPIW SU) Ul JOLISIP [00HOS SJ0WSI ‘[BINJ ‘WO0ISSE[D SUO € S| BIYSEY

(dvO7) Ueld Aligeiunoooy pue 03U [BO0T 22~ 20Z BU} Ul Papnjoul Jou aiem 1ey} 120z jo 1oy 18bpng
sy) ybnouyy papinoid spuny Jo esn sy uo sisuped [eucieonps sy ‘ebebus o) sueld Jo ‘pabebus y3 syl usyM pue Moy Jo uonduossp vy

'SJ0Y 8say} ‘Jo uonejusws|dwi pue ‘uo juawsbebus 0 pajejes sisuped [euoneonpa pue Apoq 1o pieoq Buiuianob [eo0)

8y} 0} podau JeaA-pi swi-suo € S| Buimoi|o) 8y "sjuspnys uo Bujules) souelsIp Jo sjoeduwl 8y} SSaIpPE 0} pue dlwapued 61-AIAOD 8y} wol)
Buisrooal Ul selUNWWIOD J1sy) pue ‘Uels ‘s1ayoes) ‘suepns Hoddns o) Buipuny ul sseaioul JuesyIUBIS B yum (sy37) salouabe jeuoneonps
[e90] pepiroid 8By SOk Jalal [e1OPS) PUB 18]S 8]0 PUB ‘| Z(Z JO 1OV UB|d ©Nosey UBduaWwY [RISPa) 8y} 1oV 19Bpng zz—1Z20z s.elulojien

o ) 7896-G8/-/0/ [edioulidauspuajupadng T B
610 2008 UOSUYO]} uosuyor sesuel 101181 |00YoS AJBjUBWS|] BIYSEY
oy ~ euoygpuejews.  @pil pueswep 1oBJU0D).  awep (v¥37) Aousby jeuoiiesnp3 [esoq

ueld A)jiqeIuNoooYy
pue |oJjuo) |ed07 gZz—L2z0zZ Ul 0} ajepdn jenuuy ay} o} Juawajddng



g joz ebeg puIsIg [ooyos Alejusiusig ejysey 1o} juswsiddng v 2z-120¢

"uolednpae [ein)ind pue Bujuies| Juspnjs soueyUS 0} pasn ale 9|ge|IeAB SPUR) AUE OS SJUSPN)S BLUODUI MO| SJE SJUSpNIS (I

‘elepdn |enuuy pue dy0 22-120z S.¥31 2yl yum paubije si pue sueid sjgeoljdde
SU} Yiim Jus)sisuoo si jey) souuew e ul JeaAh [00yos zz—Lz0z aU) 10} PaAIadal s82inosal [2osy sy Buisn Si w37 syl moy 10 uonduosap v



S Jo ¢ abed 1oUIsIg [00Yog AlRjuBLIaIT BIYsEY 10} Wuawalddns dvD1 22-1202
0} S8S00YD Jey} Y3 uy "sjuawnoop Buiuue|d Jayjo ul papiaoid uoneuliojul aoualalal o] Aljigixa)) sey 3 ay: ‘sidwosd asay) o) Buipuodse. uj

"sjualed 0} 9|qISS820E puk d|gepuelsiapun si jeyl abenbue| asn ‘s|geonioeld jusixs )sojealt ayj 0} ‘Isnui
pue 21ignd Jepeoiq ay} pue siauped [euoieonpa s,\YJ oY} 1o} 8|qissaooe pue [njbuiuesw aq |IIMm Jey) [IB19p JO [9AS| B UIBIUOD Jey) sasuodsal
Joupons apiaold ‘sjgesyoead juaixae isejealb ay) 0} ‘isnw sy3 ‘sidwoud asay) 0} Buipuodsal uj “pasinba. se ‘sydwold Buimoljos ay) 0} puodsey

suol}onJjsuj

'dV071 €2-¢20Z S.¥3 8 J0 Led se [eaoidde pue maiasi o) pajiwgns aq |m Juswalddng zz—1z0Z aU ‘Yons sy

ale|dwa] dvyD1 8y} Joj suononisujay] e

dVO7 €2—-¢C0¢ @4 10} s3|qe] uondy ay| e

dVvO1€2-2c0C oYL -°

juswslddns Zg—120Z dUL e

Sjuaied 10} MBINBAQ Jobpng £2-2Z2Z0Z 9UlL
:SMO|[0} SE VDT 9y} Uim
papn|oul 8q }snw pue ‘|eaoidde pue ‘maiaal ‘uondope o sasodind ay} 10} 4D £2—220Z Y1 Jo Led palepisuod sijuswa|ddng zz—1z20Z 84l
‘siauped
[euoneonps s,yy3 7 8u} Jo} 8|qIssedoe pue |njbuluesw Si1ey] |IB1ap JO |9A3] B SUIBJUOD PUB JoUIo9Ns Si )i 1ey) papiaoid IXajuo9 |Bdo| ay} sins
1S9Q Se uoleuloul siy} apiaold o) Ajjigixa|) aAeY s3] ‘elep uonejuswsaidwi pue ‘einjipuadxs ‘8woono Jeak-piw ajqe|ieae Buipodas usypn

"dVD1 22—120Z Y1 Ul payiiuapl SUonoe ||e uo eyep uolejuswsajdwi pue ainjipuadxa Jeak-pi e

pue ‘dvOT 22—1202 9y} Ul paiiuspl solaw 0} paje|os ejep SWwooino JedA-piw s|qe|lee |y e

‘(Juswielddng gz—1202) VD1 22—1 20T 8u} Joj 8jepdn jenuuy ay) o} jusws|ddng 8yl e
:Buimol|of 8y} Jo [|e apnjoul 1Isnw w37 8y ‘Bunesw siy) 1y "3 ay3 Jo Apoq Jo pieoq Buiuiaaob ay) jo Bunssw pajnpayos Auenbal
B e ‘220z ‘8z Aenigs 810jaq 1o U0 sjualed 10} MBIAIDAQ 186png pue 4y ZZ2—120gZ 24l 01 alepdn |enuuy ay3 uo alepdn ue jussaid o}
sy37 salinbai Qg | |iig Alquiassy Jo (8)z| uonoas “sjuspnis uo Buluies] aouelsip Jo sjoedwl 8y} ssaippe 0] pue diwspued 6L-QIAQD 84l WO}
BuLdA0D8l Ul SaiUNWWOD J1vy} pue ‘yels ‘sisyoes) ‘syuspnis poddns 01 Buipuny ul asealoul Juedubis B yum (sy37) seiousbe jeuoneosnps
|ea0] papiacid aAey Sioe Joljal [elopa) pue 9)els Jaylo pue ‘| Z0g 10 10V Ue|d 8nosay ueduswy |Biapa} ay) 1oy 186png Z2z—1zZ0zZ S.elulojijeD

uoijonposju|

"A0OD B2 8pI®@UI] Je Jlews AqQ 10 6080-6LE-9L6 18 suoyd Aq ‘eoiyO poddng swieisAS Aousby (8207 (S.330D)
s.uoneanp3 jo Juswipedaq eiuioyieD ayy 4o ((300) uoneanps Jo 82140 AJunod [eaoj ey} Joejuod eses|d ‘(JvD7) ueld Ayjqeiunosay pue j0UoD
18207 2Z2—L20Z 8y} 0} 81epdn jenuuy ay) 03 jJuswaiddns 8y} JO Uois|duwiod oy} 0} pojejol 8ouUejSISSe [eo1ULyo9) 10 suonsanb euonippe 104

1ea) uejd Ajljigeiunosoy
pue |oJjuo’) |e207 ZZ—1Z0Z 9y} 10} ajepdn jenuuy ayj o3 Juswajddng ayj 10} suoloniisuj




G jo  ebed lownsiq jooyos Areyuswia[g eiysey Joy juswelddng v 22-1202
«-uonejuaws|dw) Buunp pasousuedxs sebusiieyd pue sessaoons ay) pue ‘ueld ainypuadxs joijey Aousbiow [ooyos
A1epuodsg pue Alejusws|3 [eJops) pue 1oy Ueld 8nNosey UedUsWY [eiepa) oy Bunuswsidwi si Y37 9y} Moy Jo uonduosap v, :p ydwolg

"Spuny 8jels 0] pajejal

ooe|d uaxe) sey Jeys Juswabebus equosep 0} paiinbal Jou si Y37 dY1 "SpUN} 8S8Y} UO UOHEWIOUI [BUONIPPE 10} (JI5]B)JACD B3 8D MM/ SaTT] )
abed gam Buipun4 sninwng |esepad ayj pue Bulpuny Jeiel 6L-AIAOD 1o Bunsy e 1oy (dse spuniiaiai/i3/b]j/A0h B3 8pd MmmM/-sdiy) obed gem
1oays Atewwng Buipund jaiiay 61-AIAOD oY) 89S "sjuspnis uo Buiutes| souejsip Jo sjoedwi ayy pue siwspued §1-QIAOD dY} Wolj A1oA0do!
Hoddns 0} papusjul 81e jey) peAledal JI Spuny [BISPa) SWI}-oUO JO 8sn 8y uo sisuped |euoleonpe sy pabebus w37 oy UBYM pue Moy aquosa(

"uoneue|dxs siy} apiaoid ‘sjuspnis
uo Buiutes| eduejsip jo syoeduwi sy} pue olwspued gL-JIAOD U} woly Aieaooal poddns o Buipuny [B19pa) aWI)-8UO SAI8281 JoU PIP V319U }

«'Siidnd uo Bujuies| eouejsip jo spoedwi ayj pue ojwepued 6L-IAQD 8y} woly Aianooal poddns 0} papusjul
/e jel] peAleddl Spunj [elepaj sWif-auo JO 8sn 8y} uo sisupied jeuoneonps sy pebebus Y37 ey) usym pue moy Jo uonduossp v, ¢ ydwold

ueolad GG uey) Jejeaib si jey) syuspnys pajesljdnpun Jo JUSLWIIOIUS UB Y)M [00YDS B Je SJUSpN]s 0} S8ai1Aas joalp Bulpiaoid
Jjels uiejal 0} spuny sy Buisn si 37 ayi moy equossp ‘Jusased GG uey) Jejealb si Jey) sjuspnis pajesiidnpun JO JUSW|IOJUS UB LM |OOUDS B je
S)uspnys 0} sadlALes J0a1Ip Bulpiroid Yels JO Jequunu sy} 8Seaioul 0) JUSIONS JOU S| Uo-ppe Juelb UOIBUSOUOD [BUOIIPPE 94} JBY) JUSAS BU) U]

"Jusoiad GG uey) ssaj Jo 0} |enba sI jey) sjuspnys pajeoldnpun Jo Juswjjolus

UB ypm sjooyds o} paledwod se ‘Jusw|josus |idnd pajeoidnpun jusoiad GG ueyy JoyeslB yum sesndwed [00YdS UO SJUSPN]S 0} SSJIAISS J08lIp
apiroid oym ‘Yess [eipoisno Buipnioul ‘Yiog 10 ‘Ye)s PalISSE(O ‘YelS PajedyIHad JO Joaquinu By} 9SE8IOUl 0] ‘PSpUsSLUE SE ‘Z0'8EZZY UONDS
9p0Q UojEINPT BIUIOHIED UJIM JUSISISUOD PBAISDBI Spunj uo-ppe juelb uojjenueouod ayj ‘esn o} sue|d Jo ‘Buisn sI Y37 eyl Moy aqLosa(]

"uolieue|dxa siyj epiroid ‘uo-ppe Juelb uonenuasuod su} Jo Juelb UOKBIIUBOUOD B BAI9081 10U SO0P YT 4

Juasisd GG uey) sojeeub si yey) yinoA 18jso}
10/pue ‘sisules)] ysijbu3 ‘oWOdUI-MO| 818 OYM SJUSPN]S JO JUBLLJJOIUS UB UIM SOSNAWED [00YIS LU0 SJUSPN)S 0] SOINISS Joalip apiroid oym
HejJs Jo daquinu ay) asealou] 0} paAtedal j Buipunj uo-ppe juelb uoneljueouod ayj ‘osn oy sueld Jo ‘pesn y37 moy jo uondussep v, 1z ydwoid

‘uoneueidxs siyy spiroid ‘dvD 22—120z peidope sy ul spun; ajqeatidde sy} papnjoul Y3 UE §| ‘spuny

J0 8sn 8y} uo sisuped jeuoneonps sy pebebus sey y37 ay) moy Jo uonduosap e apiroid pue 4y Y} Ul papnioul Jou a1am 1ey} 1z0z o by
196png sy} ul papiroid spuny ayy Apuspl ‘4D SH Ulym papnjout AjjlesidA) aAey pinom i Jeyy LZ0Z 40 10V 196png ayy yBnouyy Buipuny palssal
V3T 343 | "P8pN[oul 8l Spunj 9soyj Jusixa Jeym 0} pue 4y 8Yj Ul pspnijoul a1e spuny jeym Buipiosp ul Ajijigixa) aAey sy37 ‘jelsushb

«(dvO7) ueld Ajjigejunosoy pue jo4uo9 (8907 LZ—0Z0Z 84} Ul POpNjoul JoU iom Jey) LZ0Z 40 JoV 1oBpng ey ybnoly)
papino.d spuny jo asn sy} uo sieuned [euoneonps sy ‘ebebus o} sueid o ‘pebebus 37 ey usym pue moy Jo uondussap v, 1 ydwoid

"punoy aq Aew paouaisjal Buleq uonewioul ay; ueld ay} ui aleym pue ‘(ebed gem e 0] yulj B
se yons) pejeoo| ae (s)ueid sy} aisym ‘pasusiajal Buleq (s)ueld sy Auspl jsnw sjuswinoop Buluueld Jayjo ul papircid UOHBULIOUI 80US18}B1



G Jo G abed PUIsIq [ooyas Ateyuswsl3 eiysey Jof Jusweiddns dvd 2z-120z

1 Z0Z JoquIanoN
uoneonp3 jo Juswyuedsa(q eluloyen

‘ueld ainyipuadx3 ||| Y3SS3 8y} PUB UBld SSOIAISS JO AJNUUOD PUE UOIONIISU| UOSISd-U| O} uinjay
9jeg ay} epnjoul sueid sjqedyidde, Jdwoud siyy 0} Bulpuodsai jo sesodind 104 "dvDT ZZ—1Z0Z S.VIT 3y} yum paubife s| jey) Jouuew e ul
sue|d e|qeoijdde jo sjusiiaiinbal sy} Juswa|dwi 0} 1eak |0oYds Zz—1Z0Z oY) 10} PaAld81 $821n0osal [eosl S) Buisn si Y37 8y} moy azuewiung

«'21epdn [enuuy pue dvd1 Z2-1202 S,v31 8y Yim paubile st pue sueid sjqeoidde ay)
L3im Jusjsisuod si jey) Jsuuew e Ul 1eak |00Yos Zg—1.20Z 9Y} 10} paAieoal S90In0sal [eosy S| Buisn si w37 sy) moy jo uonduossp v, :g 3dwo.y

"sabus|leyo pue sesseoons Buipnjoul ‘ajep o} ueld ainypuadxe (Y3SSIT) JoI9Y Aouabisw3 jooyog Alepuooeg
pue Asejusws|g |elopay 8y} Jo uonejuswa|dwl S) pue ‘|Z0Z JO 1OV UB|d 9NoSey UBdLSWY [BISpa) oy} Ag pasinbai se ‘saoiales Jo AjInunuod
8} 8Insus pue Jels JaYjo pue ‘siojeonps ‘sjuspnis Jo Ajajes pue yjesy syj uiejulew o} spoye s)i jo uonejuswsa|duwi s,y 8y} aquosaq

"uoljeue|dxe siy} epiroid ‘Buipun ||| YISST SAI9081 J0U S80pP Y3 Ue i



L]

Heogme

Meas  POLICYUPDATES  Nsws Details

September 2021 Update Guidesheet

Policy updates are issued every March. June. September, and December. The palicies listed below were recently updated for the reasons described. GAMUT Palicy subscribers can click here. or on the Policy
Updates link in Ihe Policies menu to access updated policies,

(Yaumust ba signed in to view sample policies)

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET
September 2021

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, board bylaws, and/or exhiblts. Editorial changes have also been made, Districts and
county offices of education should review the sampli materials and modify thelr own policies accordingly.

Board Policy 0470 - COVID-19 Mitigation Plan

Policy updated to add new note to reflect that districts are obligated to comply with COVID-19 mitigation requirements from multiple jurisdictional authorities including the California Department of
Public Health {CDPH}, the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health {Cal/OSHAY}, and local health authorities, to reflect guidance from CDPH and Cal/OSHA's COVID-19 prevention
program, and reflect requirements fur districts to create and past COVIE-19 safety plans. Policy updated to direct the Superintendent andfor desig to blish and maintain a COVID-19 safety plan
that complies with public health guldance of COPH, the requirements of CalfOSHA, any orders of state or local health authorities, and any ather applicable law and/or health order(s) and to omit specific
details regarding COVID-19 mitigation practices due to the evolving naturd of public health guldance. Policy updated Lo reflact NEW LAW (AR B6, 2021) and MEW LAW (AB 130, 2021} requiring the
reporting of specified COVID-1% cases to CDPH and requiring the reporting of ather infarmation to the California Collabiorative for Educational Excellence (CCEE). Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW
|AH B, 2021} and NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) requiring districts that receive Extended Learning Opportunities (ELO) grant funding to implement a learning recovery program that provides supplemental
instruction, support for social-emotional well-being, and to the maximum extent permissible as specified in U.S. Department of Agriculture guidelines, meals and snacks, to eligible students. Policy also
updated to include promising practices for reengaging chranically absent students and to direct the Superintendent or designee to ensure the continuity of instruction for students who may be under a
quarantine order to stay home by offering such students independent study or other instructional delivery channels that allows the student to continue to participate in the instructional program to the
greatest extent possible.

Board Policy 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) requirlng districts applying to the Superintendent of Public Instruction ta obtain apportionment credit for days and minutes lost due to emergency
closure after September 1, 2021 to certify in an affidavit that the district has a plan for offering independent study within 10 days of school closure to impacted students. Policy also updated to reflect
requirement that the plan for independent study address the establishment, within a reasonable time, of independent study master agreements and require the reopening in person once allowable
under direction from the city or county health officer.

Board Policy 4131 - Staff Development

Policy updated to incorporate concepts of student well-being and social-emotional development and learning as it relates to professional development, ta clarify that the development of the staff
development program includes creating, reviewing and amending the program, to reflect the State Board of Education's California Digital Learning Integration and Standards Guidance regarding staff
development in the use of technologies, to reference NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) regarding requirements for districts offering technology-based instruction purstant to an Independent study program,
and to expand the list of characteristics that are included in diverse student populations as related to staff development in meeting the needs of such students. Policy also updated to enhance staff
development regarding school climate to include acceptance, civility, and positive behavioral interventions and supports, and staff development regarding student's mental and physical health to include
social-emational learning and trauma-informed practices.

Board Policy 6120 - Response to Instructlon and Intervention

Policy updated to emphasize the importance of fearning and behavioral outcomes and progress monitoring as it relates to response to instruction and intervention (Rt12), reference multi-tiered system
of supports (MTSS) and the integration of Rt|2 into such frameworks, expand the list of individuals that may be included in designing the district's RtI2 system, add the examination of student social-
emotional well-being as one of the bases for design, provide more detail regarding strategies and interventions including ten core components of the RtI2 model identified by the California Department
of Education, and that RtI2 may be utilized as one component when considering the referral of a student for evaluation for special education or other services,

uaticiyequiremants and crgditrectVely opgorl Lo 7 .pam;ﬁt;guﬁh%pubﬂu,andto
Rability o i local graduation requirements when apii

Board Palicy 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education

Policy updated to reference the U.S, Department of Education's (USDOE) Return to School Roadmap: Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act which reaffirms the
obligation to fully implement the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act {IDEA) during the COVID-19 pandemic, including the requirement to meet child find obligations, and encourages districts to
reexamine the elficacy of existing child find practices in light of the educational disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic

Administrative Regulation 6164.4 - [dentification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education

Regulation updated to reference USDOE's Return to School Roadmap: Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act which recommends that districts undertake new child
find activities inlight of the educational disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and emphasizes that students who are experiencing long-term COVID effects be referred for special education
evaluation if their symptoms are adversely impacting their ability to participate and learn in the general curriculum. Regulation also updated to provide that the child Aind process includes the collection
and screening of data to determine if students are making adeguate progress, to include the district's obligation to ensure that evaluations of children suspected of having a disability are not defayed or
denied because of the implementation of response to intervention strategies, clarify material regarding referrals for initial evaluations, evaluation plans and informed parent/guardian consent, reflect
the timeline for the determination of whether the student is eligible for special education and the educational needs of the student and when an Individualized Education Program {IEP} meeting and the
development of an [EP occurs, clarify the qualifications of personnel who administer evaluations and reevaluations, add that the narmal process of second-language acquisition as well as manlfestatfons
of dialect and social linguistic variance not be diagnosed as a disabling conditlon, and clarify material regarding Independent Educational Evaluations. Regulation also updated to reference M.M. v.
Lafayette School District, a Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals decision which held that the district violated IDEA when it failed to provide parents with their child's response to instruction (RT1) data when
seeking informed consent for an initial evaluation.

Board Policy 6164.41 - Children with Disabilities Envolted by their Parents In Private Schoot
Policy updated to reorganize and clarify material,

Administrative Regulation 6164.41 - Children with Disabllitles Enrolled by their Parents in Private School

Regulation updated to reference USDOE's Return to School Roadmap: Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act which recommends best practices for keeping
parents/guardians, teachers, and private school officials informed of the child find process, enhance the section regarding consultation with private school representatives, and reference USDOE's
Questions and Answers on Serving Children with Disabilities Placed by their Parents in Private School which emphasizes that districts may not require a private school to implement a RTl process before
evaluating parentally-placed private school children, Regulation also updated to add that evaluation of all identlfied parentally-placed private school children with disabilities be conducted as specified In
BP/AR - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Speclal Education including obtalning parent/guardian consent, that the district is required to make a free appropriate public education avallable
to a child residing in the district who fs eligible for an [EP. and to clarify material regarding the qualification requirements of private elementary and secondary school teachers providing equltable
services to parentally-placed private school children,

Board Policy 6164.5 - Student Success Teams

Policy updated to reference that the student success team (SST) process is not required by law and that the policy reflects best practices, clarify those who are encouraged ta collaborate in SSTs, include
social and emotional difficulties when evaluating the strengths and needs of students and establishing interventions, emphasize the importance of each student maximizing their potential, specify who
may refer students to S5Ts, add types of materials appropriate for collection, analysis and review by the SST, provide for the development of a plan to support the student and adjustments to such plan,
reflect that the SST process shall not delay or deny a referral for evaluation for eligibility for special education, reference MTSS and the integration of $5Ts with such supports, and add staff development
which may be provided to strengthen the effectiveness of 55Ts,

Administrative Regulation 6164.5 - Student Success Teams

Regulation updated to reference that the SST process is ot required by law and that the regulationreflects best practices, emphasize the importance of school counselors in the SST membership,
provide that the makeup of each individual SST is at the district's discretion, reference the ability of districts to appoint a districtwide or schoolwide SST coordinator, identify teachers specifically as
school staff with whom consultation may occur, add types of materials appropriate for collection ta inform SST members, and add the development of a plan, and adjustments to the plan and related
interventions, as one of the SST respansibilities

csbawg Gamut

i1



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Palicy 0470: COVID-19 Mitigation Plan Status: ADOPTED
Original Adopted Date: 06/01/2020 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2020

The following policy establishes actions that will be taken by the district to provide a safe learning and working
environment during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, and shall supersede any conflicting language in existing
district policies or administrative regulations untif the Governing Board determines that the need for this policy no
longer exists. The Board acknowledges that, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic, federal, state, and local
orders impacting district operations are subject to change without notice. In the event that any federal or state law
and/or order or local order may conflict with this poticy, the law or order shall govern.

The Board may also adopt resolutions or take other actions as needed to respond to such orders or provide further
direction during the pandemic.

To limit the impact of the pandemic on the education of district students, the district shall implement learning
recovery, social-emotional support, and other measures and strategies designed to keep students learning and
engaged in the instructional program.

COVID-19 Safety Plan

The Superintendent or designee shall establish, implement, and maintain a COVID-19 safety plan that complies with
any mandatory public health guidance of the California Department of Public Health (CDPH), the COVID-19
prevention program ("CPP") consistent with the regulations of the California Division of Occupational Safety and
Health, any orders of state or local health authorities, and any other applicable law and/or health order(s). The
Superintendent or designee shall ensure, at a minimum, that the COVID-19 safety plan complies with all mandatory
guidance and gives priority to recommended practices that are identified as being particularly effective at COVID-19
mitigation. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review public health guidance to ensure that the district's
COVID-19 mitigation strategies are current with public health mandates or recommendations.

The district's COVID-19 safety plan shall be posted on the district's web site.

To promote transparency and facilitate decision-making regarding COVID-19 mitigation strategies, the
Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board on a regular basis regarding the following:

1. Level of community transmission of COVID-19

2. COVID-19 vaccination coverage in the community and among students and staff
3. Any local COVID-19 outbreaks or increasing trends

4. Changes to local, state, and/or federal public health guidance, orders, and laws
5. Any revisions to the district's COVID-19 safety plan

Reporting to the Public Health Department

Upon learning that a school employee or student who has tested positive for COVID-19 was present on campus
while infectious, the Superintendent or designee shall inmediately, and in no case later than 24 hours after learning
of the positive case, notify the local health officer or the local health officer's representative about the positive case.
The notification shall be made even if the individual who tested positive has not provided prior consent to the
disclosure of personally identifiable information and shall include all of the following information, if known:
{Education Code 32090)

1. Identifying information of the individual who tested positive, including full name, address, telephone number,
and date of birth

2. The date of the positive test, the school(s) at which the individual was present, and the date the individual was
last onsite at the school(s)



3. The name, address, and telephone number of the person making the report

If a school has two or more outbreaks of COVID-19 and is subject to a safety review by CDPH pursuant to Education
Code 32090, the Superintendent or designee shall cooperate fully with the review.

Statewide Instructional Mode Survey

On or before the second and fourth Monday of each month, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the
California Collaborative for Educational (CCEE) information required under Education Code 32091, in accordance
with the form and procedures determined by CCEE.

Stakeholder Engagement and Community Relations

The district shall solicit input from stakeholders on how to best support students following the learning disruptions of
the pandemic through appropriate methods, which may include surveys, community and family meetings, and other
methods identified by the Superintendent or designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with local health authorities to ensure that parents/guardians are
provided with the information needed to ensure that public health guidance is observed in the home as well as in
school, such as information about isolation and quarantine requirements, face mask requirements, symptom checks
prior to school attendance, and who to contact when students have symptoms and/or were exposed.

The Superintendent or designee shall use a variety of methods to regularly communicate with students,
parents/guardians, and the community regarding community transmission levels, district operations, school
schedules, and steps the district is taking to promote the health and safety of students. In addition, the members of
the Board have a responsibility as community leaders to communicate matters of public interest in a manner that is
consistent with Board policies and bylaws regarding public statements.

The district shall continue to collaborate with local health officials and agencies, community organizations, and other
stakeholders to ensure that district operations reflect current recommendations and best practices for COVID-19

mitigation strategies. The Superintendent or designee shall keep informed about resources and services available in
the community to assist students and families in need.

Learning Recovery and Social-Emotional Support

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan for assessing students' current academic levels early in the
school year to ensure that each student is provided with appropriate opportunities for learning recovery based on
need. The plan may include:

1. Use of interim or diagnostic assessments

2. Review of available data from assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and
Progress

3. Review of attendance data from the 2020-2021 school year

4, Review of prior year grades
5. Discussion of student needs and strengths with parents/guardians and former teachers
The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a learning recovery program that, at a minimum,

provides supplemental instruction and support for social emotionat well-being, and to the maximum extent
permissible meals and snacks, to eligible students. (Education Code 43522)

Supplemental Instruction and Support

The district shall provide students with evidence-based supports and interventions in a tiered framework that bases
universal, targeted, and intensive supports on students' needs for academic, social-emotional, and other integrated



student supports through a program of engaging learning experiences in a positive school climate. (Education Code
43522)

Targeted and intensive supports may include: (Education Code 43522)

1. Extending instructional learning time based on student learning needs including through summer school or
intersessional instructional programs

2. Tutoring or other one-on-one or small group learning supports provided by certificated or classified staff

3. Learning recovery programs and materials designed to accelerate student academic proficiency, English
language proficiency, or both

4. Integrated student supports to address other barriers to learning, such as:
a. The provision of health, counseling, or mental health services
b. Access to school meal programs
c. Access to before and after school programs
d. Programs to address student trauma and social-emotional learning
e. Referrals for support for family or student needs

5. Community learning hubs that provide students with access to technology, high-speed internet, and other
academic supports

6. Supports for credit deficient students to complete graduation or grade promotion requirements and to
increase or improve students' college eligibility

7. Additional academic services for students, such as diagnostic, progress monitoring, and benchmark
assessments of student learning

8. Other interventions identified by the Superintendent or designee
To ensure schoolwide implementation of the district's tiered framework of supports, the Superintendent or designee

shall plan staff development that includes: (Education Code 43522)

1. Accelerated learning strategies and effective techniques for closing learning gaps, including training in
facilitating quality learning opportunities for all students

2. Strategies, including trauma-informed practices, to engage students and families in addressing students' social-
emotional health needs and academic needs

The Superintendent or designee shall implement strategies for identifying, locating, and reengaging students who
were chronically absent or disengaged during the 2020-21 school year, including students who were kindergarten-
age but who did not enroll in kindergarten. Strategies for reengaging students may include:

1. Personal outreach to families, including by staff who are known to families

2. Door-to-door campaigns

3. The use of social media to spread awareness about the implementation of COVID-19 mitigation strategies

4. Welcoming and supporting students who experienced chronic absenteeism due to the COVID-19 pandemic or
who are returning to school after a long absence



Student Absence and Attendance

The Board recognizes that COVID-19 will continue to impact the attendance of students. The Superintendent or
designee shall notify students and parents/guardians of expectations regarding school attendance. Such notification
shall direct any student who contracts the virus or is subject to a quarantine order to stay home in accordance with
state and local health orders.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure continuity of instruction for students who may be under a quarantine
order to stay home, by offering such students independent study or other instructional delivery channels that allows
the student to continue to participate in the instructional program to the greatest extent possible.

Nondiscrimination

The Board prohibits discrimination based on actual or perceived medical condition or disability status. (Government
Code 11135)

Individual students and staff shall not be identified as being COVID-positive, nor shall students be shamed, treated
differently, or denied access to a free and appropriate public education because of their COVID-19 status or medical
condition. Staff shall not disclose confidential or privileged information, including the medical history or health
information of students and staff except as allowed by law. (Education Code 49450)

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any reports of harassment, intimidation, and bullying targeted at
any student based on their medical condition or COVID status, exposure, or high-risk status.




school, including lesson study or co-teaching, and external learning opportunities that are related to academic
subjects taught, provide time to meet and work with other teachers, and support instruction and student learning.
Learning activities may include, but are not limited to, mentoring projects for new teachers, extra support for
teachers to improve practice, and collaboration time for teachers to develop new instructional lessons, select or
develop common formative assessments, or analyze student data. (Education Code 44277)

The district's staff evaluation process may be used to recommend additional individualized staff development for
individual employees.

The Board may budget funds for actual and reasonable expenses incurred by staff who participate in staff
development activities.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide a means for continual evaluation of the benefit of staff development
activities to both staff and students and shall regularly report to the Board regarding the effectiveness of the staff
development program. Based on the Superintendent's report, the Board may revise the program as necessary to
ensure that the staff development program supports the district's priorities for student achievement and well-being.



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Regulation 3516: Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2004 | Last Revised Date: 05/01/2018 | Last Reviewed Date: 05/01/2018

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district and/or school site plans address, at a minimum, the
following types of emergencies and disasters:

1.

2.

6.

A

Fire on or off school grounds which endangers students and staff

Earthquake, flood, or other natural disasters

Environmental hazards, such as leakages or spills of hazardous materials

Attack or disturbance, or threat of attack or disturbance, by an individual or group

Bomb threat or actual detonation

Biological, radiological, chemical, and other activities, or heightened warning of such activities

Medical emergencies and quarantines, such as a pandemic influenza outbreak

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's procedures include strategies and actions for
prevention/mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery, including, but not limited to, the following:

1.

Regular inspection of school facilities and equipment, identification of risks, and implementation of strategies
and measures to increase the safety and security of school facilities

Instruction for district staff and students regarding emergency plans, including:
a. Training of staff in first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation
b. Regular practice of emergency procedures by students and staff

Specific determination of roles and responsibilities of staff during a disaster or other emergency, including
determination of:

a. The appropriate chain of command at the district and, if communication between the district and site is
not possible, at each site

b. Individuals responsible for specific duties

c. Designation of the principal for the overall control and supervision of activities at each school during an
emergency, including authorization to use his/her discretion in situations which do not permit execution

of prearranged plans

d. Identification of at least one person at each site who holds a valid certificate in first aid and
cardiopulmonary resuscitation

e. Assignment of responsibility for identification of injured persons and administration of first aid

4. Personal safety and security, including:

a. ldentification of areas of responsibility for the supervision of students
b. Procedures for the evacuation of students and staff, including posting of evacuation routes

c. Procedures for the release of students, including a procedure to release students when reference to the
emergency card is not feasible

d. {dentification of transportation needs, including a plan which allows bus seating capacity limits to be
exceeded when a disaster or hazard requires students to be moved immediately to ensure their safety



e. Provision of a first aid kit to each classroom
f. Arrangements for students and staff with special needs

g. Upon notification that a pandemic situation exists, adjustment of attendance policies for students and
sick leave policies for staff with known or suspected pandemic influenza or other infectious disease

5. Closure of schools, including an analysis of:
a. The impact on student learning and methods to ensure continuity of instruction

b. How to provide for continuity of operations for essential central office functions, such as payroll and
ongoing communication with students and parents/guardians
6. Communication among staff, parents/guardians, the Governing Board, other governmental agencies, and the
media during an emergency, including:

a. Identification of spokesperson(s)

b. Development and testing of communication platforms, such as hotlines, telephone trees, web sites,
social media, and electronic notifications

c. Development of methods to ensure that communications are, to the extent practicable, in a language
and format that is easy for parents/guardians to understand

d. Distribution of information about district and school site emergency procedures to staff, students, and
parents/guardians

7. Cooperation with other state and local agencies, including:
a. Development of guidelines for law enforcement involvement and intervention

b. Collaboration with the local health department, including development of a tracking system to alert the
local health department of a substantial increase of student or staff absenteeism as indicative of a
potential outbreak of an infectious disease

8. Steps to be taken after the disaster or emergency, including:
a. Inspection of school facilities

b. Provision of mental health services for students and staff, as needed

The Superintendent or designee shall assemble key information that would be needed in an emergency. Such
information may include, but is not limited to, a list of individuals and organizations who should be contacted for
assistance in an emergency, current layouts and blueprints of school buildings, aerial photos of the campus, maps of
‘evacuation routes and alternate routes, a roster of employees with their work locations, student photographs and
their emergency contact information, a clearly labeled set of keys, location of first aid supplies, and procedures and
locations for turning off fire alarms, sprinklers, utilities, and other systems. Such information shall be stored in a box
in a secure, easily accessible location, with a duplicate kept at another location in case the primary location is

inaccessible.



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 4131: Staff Development Status: ADOPTED
Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2008 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 07/01/2015

The Governing Board believes that, in order to maximize student learning, achievement, and well-being, certificated
staff members must be continuously learning and improving relevant skills. The Superintendent or designee shall
develop a program of ongoing professional development which includes opportunities for teachers to enhance their
instructional and classroom management skills, become informed about changes in pedagogy and subject matter, and
strengthen practices related to social-emotional development and learning.

The Superintendent or designee shall involve teachers, site and district administrators, and others, as appropriate,
when creating, reviewing, and amending the district's staff development program. The Superintendent or designee
shall ensure that the district's staff development program is aligned with district priorities for student learning,
achievement and well-being, school improvement objectives, the local control and accountability plan, and other
district and school plans.

The district's staff development program shall assist certificated staff in developing knowledge and skills, including,
but not limited to:

1. Mastery of subject-matter knowledge, including current state and district academic standards
2. Use of effective, subject-specific teaching methods, strategies, and skills
3. Use of technologies to enhance instruction and learning, including face-to-face, remote, or hybrid instruction

4. Sensitivity to and ability to meet the needs of diverse student populations, including, but not limited to,
students with characteristics specified in Education Code 200 and/or 220, Government Code 11135, and/or
Penal Code 422.55

5. Understanding of how academic and career technical instruction can be integrated and implemented to
increase student learning

6. Knowledge of strategies that encourage parents/guardians to participate fully and effectively in their children's
education

7. Effective classroom management skills and strategies for establishing a climate that promotes respect, fairness,
acceptance, and civility, including conflict resolution, hatred prevention, and positive behavioral interventions

and supports

8. Ability to relate to students, understand their various stages of growth and development, and motivate them to
learn

9. Ability to interpret and use data and assessment results to guide instruction

10. Knowledge of topics related to student mental and physical health, safety, and welfare, which may include
social-emotional learning and trauma-informed practices

11. Knowledge of topics related to employee health, safety, and security

The Superintendent or designee shall, in conjunction with teachers, interns, and administrators, as appropriate,
develop an individualized program of professional growth to increase competence, performance, and effectiveness in
teaching and classroom management and, as necessary, to assist them in meeting state or federal requirements to be
fully qualified for their positions.

Professional learning opportunities offered by the district shall be evaluated based on the criteria specified in
Education Code 44277. Such opportunities may be part of a coherent plan that combines school activities within a



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 6120: Response To Instruction And Intervention Status: ADOPTED
Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2009 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 07/01/2009

The Governing Board desires to improve learning and behavioral outcomes for all students by providing a high-
quality, data-driven educational program that meets the learning and behavioral needs of each student and reduces
disparities in achievement among subgroups of students. Students who are not making academic progress pursuant
to district measures of performance and/or are struggling behaviorally shall receive intensive instruction and
intervention supports designed to meet individual learning needs, with progress monitored.

The Superintendent or designee shall convene a team that may include, as appropriate, staff with knowledge of
curriculum and instruction, student services, special education, and instructional and behavioral support, certificated
personnel, other district staff, and parents/guardians to assist in designing the district's Response to Instruction and

Intervention (Rtl2) system, based on an examination of indicators of district and schoolwide student achievement and
social-emotional well-being.

The district's RtI2 system shall include instructional strategies and interventions with demonstrated effectiveness and
be aligned with the district curriculum and assessments. The Superintendent or designee may conduct ongoing

screening to determine student needs, analyze data, identify interventions for students not making adequate
academic progress, monitor the effectiveness of the interventions, and adjust interventions according to efficacy.

The district's Rtl? system shall include research-based, standards-based, culturally relevant instruction for students in
the general education program; universal screening and continuous classroom monitoring to determine students'
needs and to identify those students who are not making progress; criteria for determining the types and levels of
interventions to be provided; and subsequent monitoring of student progress to determine the effectiveness of the

intervention and to make changes as needed.

Additionally, the districts RtlZ system shall provide for:

1. High-quality classroom instruction

2. High expectations

3. Assessments and data collection

4. Problem-solving systems approach

5. Research-based interventions

6. Positive behavioral support

7. Fidelity of program implementation

8. Staff development and collaboration, which may include training in the use of assessments, data analysis,
research-based instructional practices and strategies and emphasize a collaborative approach of professional
learning communities among teachers within and across grade spans

9. Parent/guardian and family involvement, including collaboration and engagement
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians are involved at all stages of the
instructional, intervention, and progress monitoring process. Parents/guardians shall be kept informed of the

services that have and will be provided, the strategies being used to increase the student's rate of learning, the
supports provided to improve behavioral difficulties, and the performance data that has and will be collected.

10. Consideration of further evaluation utilizing Rtl2 data

The Rtl% system may be utilized as one companent when considering the referral of a student for evaluation
for special education or other services.



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

‘Policy 6164.4: ldentification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education Status: ADOPTED

A_Or:'_l.:gl_:na\l ‘Adopted Date: 03/01/2007 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 11/01/2008

The Governing Board recognizes the need to actively seek out and evaluate district residents from birth to age 21
who have disabilities in order to provide them with appropriate educational opportunities in accordance with state
and federal law.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a comprehensive child find system that includes procedures for the
identification, screening, referral, assessment, and triennial assessment of individuals eligible for special education, as
well as procedures for the planning, implementation, and review of the special education and related services
provided to such individuals. (Education Code 56301)

The district's identification procedures shall include systematic methods for utilizing referrals from parents/guardians,
teachers, agencies, appropriate professionals, and other members of the public, and shall be coordinated with school
site procedures for referral of students whose needs cannot be met with modifications to the regular instructional
program. (Education Code 56302)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians, in writing, of their rights related to identification,
referral, assessment, instructional planning, implementation, and review, including the right to consent to any
assessment concerning their child. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of
procedures for initiating a referral for assessment to identify individuals for special education services. (Education
Code 56301)



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

‘Regiilation 6164.4: Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2007 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 11/01/2010

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's child find process includes the collection of data and,
at reasonable intervals, the screening of such data to determine if students are making adequate progress, as
appropriate.

A student shall be referred for special education instruction and services only after the resources of the regular
education program have been considered and used where appropriate. (Education Code 56303)

However, the district shall ensure that evaluations of children suspected of having a disability are not delayed or
denied because of the implementation of response to intervention strategies.

A parent/guardian or the district may initiate a request for an initial evaluation to determine if the student is a
student with a disability. (34 CFR 300.301)

When a verbal referral is made, staff shall offer assistance to the individual to make the request in writing and shall
assist the individual if the individual requests such assistance. (5 CCR 3021)

All referrals from school staff for an initial evaluation shall include a brief reason for the referral and description of
the regular program resources that were considered and/or modified for use with the student and, when appropriate,
the results of intervention. This documentation shall not delay the timelines for completing the assessment plan or
assessment. (5 CCR 3021)

Initial Evaluation for Special Education Services

Before the initial provision of special education and related services to a student with a disability, the district shall
conduct a full and individual initial evaluation of the student. (Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.301)

Upon receipt of a referral of any student for special education and related services, a proposed evaluation plan shall
be developed within 15 calendar days, not counting days between the student's regular school sessions or terms or
calendar days of school vacation in excess of five schoo! days, unless the parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an
extension. If the referral is made within 10 days or less prior to the end of the student's regular school year or term,
the proposed evaluation plan shall be developed within 10 days after the beginning of the next regular school year or
term. (Education Code 56043, 56321)

The proposed evaluation plan shall meet all of the following requirements: (Education Code 56321)
1. Be in a language easily understood by the general public

2. Be provided in the native language of the parent/guardian or other mode of communication used by the
parent/guardian unless it is clearly not feasible

3. Explain the types of evaluation to be conducted

4. State that no individualized education program (IEP) will result from the evaluation without parent/guardian
consent

A copy of the notice of a parent/guardian's rights and procedural safeguards shall be attached to the evaluation plan.
(Education Code 56321)

The proposed written evaluation plan shall include a description of recent assessments conducted, including available
independent assessments and assessment information requested by the parent/guardian to be considered, as well as
information indicating the student's primary language and the student's primary language proficiency as determined
by Education Code section 52164.1. (5 CCR 3022)



Before conducting an initial evaluation, the district shall provide the parent/guardian with prior written notice in
accordance with 34 CFR 300.503. In addition, as part of the evaluation plan, the parent/guardian shall receive
written notice that includes all of the following information: (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.304, 300.502,
300.504)

1. Upon completion of the administration of tests and other evaluation materials, an IEP team meeting that
includes the parent/guardian or the parent/guardian's representative shall be scheduled pursuant to Education
Code 56341. At this meeting, the team shall determine whether or not the student is a student with
disabilities, as defined in Education Code 56026, and shall discuss the evaluation, the educational
recommendations, and the reasons for the recommendations.

2. When making a determination of eligibility for special education, the district shall not determine that the
student is disabled if the primary factor for such determination is lack of appropriate instruction in reading,
including the essential components of reading instruction as defined in 20 USC 6368, lack of appropriate
instruction in mathematics, or limited English proficiency, if the student does not otherwise meet the eligibility
criteria under 34 CFR 300.8.

3. A copy of the evaluation report and the documentation of determination of eligibility shall be given to the
parent/guardian.

4. If the parent/guardian disagrees with an evaluation obtained by the district, the parent/guardian has the right
to obtain, at public expense, an independent educational evaluation (IEE) of the student from qualified
specialists, in accordance with 34 CFR 300.502. The parent/guardian is entitled to only one such evaluation at
public expense each time the district conducts an assessment with which the parent/guardian disagrees.

If the district observed the student in conducting its evaluation, or if its evaluation procedures make it
permissible to have in-class observation of the student, an equivalent opportunity shall apply to the IEE. This
equivalent opportunity shall apply to the student's current placement and setting as well as observation of the
district's proposed placement and setting, if any, regardless of whether the IEE is initiated before or after the
filing of a due process hearing proceeding.

5. The district may initiate a due process hearing pursuant to Education Code 56500-56508 to show that its
evaluation is appropriate. If the final decision resulting from the due process hearing is that the evaluation is
appropriate, the parent/guardian maintains the right for an IEE, but not at public expense.

If the parent/guardian obtains an IEE at private expense, the results of the IEE shall be considered by the
district with respect to the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to the student, and may be
presented as evidence at a due process hearing regarding the student. If the district observed the student in
conducting its evaluation, or if its evaluation procedures make it permissible to have in-class observation of a
student, an equivalent opportunity shall apply to an IEE of the student in the student's current educational
placement and setting and in any educational placement and setting proposed by the district, regardless of
whether the IEE is initiated before or after the filing of a due process hearing.

6. If the parent/guardian proposes a publicly financed placement of the student in a nonpublic school, the district
shall have an opportunity to observe the proposed placement and, if the student has already been unilaterally
placed in the nonpublic school by the student's parent/guardian, the student in that proposed placement. Any
such observation shall only be of the student who is the subject of the observation and shall not include the
observation or evaluation of any other student in the proposed placement unless that other student's
parent/guardian consents to the observation or evaluation. The results of any observation or evaluation of
another student in violation of Education Code 56329(d) shall be inadmissible in any due process or judicial
proceeding regarding FAPE of that other student.

Parent/Guardian Consent for Evaluations

Upon receiving the proposed evaluation plan, the parent/guardian shall have at least 15 days to decide whether to
consent to the initial evaluation. The district shall not interpret parent/guardian consent for initial evaluation as
consent for initial placement or initial provision of special education services, (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR

300.300)

Informed parental consent means that the parent/guardian: (Education Code 56021.1; 34 CFR 300.9)



1. Has been fully informed, in the parent/guardian's native language or other mode of communication, of all
information relevant to the activity for which consent is sought

2. Understands and agrees, in writing, to the carrying out of the activity for which parent/guardian consent is
sought and the consent describes that activity and lists the records (if any) that will be released and to whom

3. Understands that the granting of consent is voluntary on the parent/guardian's part and may be revoked at any
time

4. Understands that if the parent/guardian revokes consent, that revocation is not retroactive (i.e., it does not
negate an action that has occurred after the consent was given and before the consent was revoked). The
district is not required to amend the education records of a student to remove any reference to the student's
receipt of special education and services if the student's parent/guardian submits a written revocation of
consent after the initial provision of special education and related services to the student.

The district shall make reasonable efforts to obtain the informed consent of the parent/guardian for an initial
evaluation or reevaluation of a student. (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.322)

The district shall maintain a record of its attempts to obtain consent, which may include:

1. Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls
2. Copies of correspondence sent to the parent/guardian and any responses received

3. Detailed records of visits made to the parent/guardian’s home or place of employment and the results of those
visits

If a parent/guardian refuses to consent to the initial evaluation or fails to respond to a request to provide consent,
the district may, but is not required to, pursue an evaluation by utilizing the procedural safeguards, including the
mediation and due process procedures pursuant to 20 USC 1415 and 34 CFR 300.506-300.516. (Education Code

56321; 34 CFR 300.300)

For a student who is a ward of the state and not residing with the student's parent/guardian, the district shall make
reasonable efforts to obtain the informed consent from the parent of the student for an initial evaluation to
determine whether the student is a student with a disability. The district may conduct an initial evaluation without
obtaining informed consent if any of the following situations exists: (Education Code 56321.1; 20 USC 1414, 34

CFR 300.300)

1. Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the district cannot discover the whereabouts of the parent/guardian of the
student.

2. The rights of the parent/guardian of the student have been terminated in accordance with state law.,

3. The rights of the parent/guardian to make educational decisions have been subrogated by a judge in
accordance with state law and consent for an initial evaluation has been given by an individual appointed by
the judge to represent the student.

The district need not obtain parent/guardian consent before reviewing existing data as part of an evaluation or
reevaluation, or before administering a test or other evaluation that is administered to all students, unless consent is
required from the parents/guardians of all students. (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300)

Conduct of the Evaluation

Within 60 calendar days of receiving parental consent for the initial assessment of a student, not counting days
between the student's regular school sessions, terms, or days of school vacation in excess of five schooldays, a
determination whether the student is eligible for special education and the educational needs of the student shall be
made, an {EP team meeting shall occur, and an IEP shall be developed, unless the parent/guardian agrees in writing



to an extension, pursuant to Education Code 56344. If the 60-day time is interrupted by a student school vacation,
the 60-day time shall recommence on the date that student schooldays reconvene and a meeting to develop an IEP
for the student shall be conducted within 30 days of a determination that the student needs special education and
related services. (Education Code 56043, 56344)

However, when a referral has been made for a student 30 days or less prior to the end of the regular school year, an
IEP required as a result of an assessment of the student shall be developed within 30 days after the commencement
of the subsequent regular school year. (Education Code 56043, 56344; 34 CFR 300.301, 300.323)

The evaluation shall be conducted by qualified personnel who are competent to perform the assessment as
determined by the district. (Education Code 56320, 56322}

In addition, evaluations and reevaluations shall be administered by qualified personnel who are competent in the oral
or sign language skills and written skills of the student's primary language or mode of communication and have a
knowledge and understanding of the cultural and ethnic background of the student. If it is clearly not feasible to do
so, an interpreter shall be used, and the assessment report shall document this condition and note that the validity of
the assessment may have been affected. The normal process of second-language acquisition, as well as
manifestations of dialect and sociolinguistic variance shall not be diagnosed as a disabling condition. (5 CCR 3023)

The screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional strategies for curriculum
implementation shall not be considered to be an evaluation for eligibility for special education and related services.
(Education Code 56321; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.302)

In conducting the evaluation, the district shall use a variety of assessment tools and strategies to gather relevant
functional, developmental, and academic information about the student. The district shall also use any information
provided by the parent/guardian that may assist the district in making the determination as to whether the student is
a student with a disability and, if so, the necessary components of the student's IEP when the IEP is developed,
including information related to enabling the student to be involved in and to progress in the general education
curriculum. (34 CFR 300.304)

The district's evaluation shall not use any single measure or assessment as the sole criterion for determining whether
a student is a student with a disability and for determining the appropriate educational program for the student. The
assessment shall use technically sound instruments that may assess the relative contribution of cognitive and
behavioral factors in addition to physical or developmental factors. (34 CFR 300.304)

The district shall also ensure that assessments and other evaluation materials provide relevant information that
assists in determining the student's educational needs and are: (Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.304)

1. Selected and administered so as not to be discriminatory on a racial, cultural, or sexual basis

2. Provided and administered in the student's native language or other mode of communication and in the form
most likely to yield accurate information on what the student knows and can do academically,
developmentally, and functionally, unless it is clearly not feasible to so provide or administer

3. Used for the purposes for which the assessments or measures are valid and reliable

4. Administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel except that individually administered tests of
intellectual or emotional functioning shall be administered by a credentialed school psychologist

5. Administered in accordance with any instructions provided by the producer of the assessments

6. Tailored to assess specific areas of educational need and not merely designed to provide a single general
intelligence guotient

7. If administered to a student with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, selected and administered to
best ensure that the results accurately reflect the student's aptitude or achievement level or whatever other
factors the test purports to measure, rather than reflecting the child's impaired sensory, manual, or speaking
skills (unless those skills are the factors that the test purports to measure).

Students shall be assessed in all areas related to the suspected disability, including, if appropriate, health and
development, vision (including low vision), hearing, motor abilities, language function, general intelligence, academic



Before entering kindergarten or first grade, as the case may be, children with disabilities who are in a preschool
program shall be reevaluated to determine if they still need special education and services. IEP teams shall identify a
means of monitoring the continued success of children who are determined to be eligible for less intensive special

education programs. (Education Code 56445)



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 6164.41: Children With Disabilities Enrolled By Their Parents In Private School Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2007 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 03/01/2007

The Governing Board recognizes its obligations under state and federal to locate, identify, evaluate, and provide
equitable services to children voluntarily enrolled by their parents/guardians in private schools located within the
district.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that activities to locate, identify, and evaluate children with disabilities
enrolled by their parents/guardians in private schools within the district are comparable to activities undertaken for
individuals with disabilities aged three to 22 in public schools within the district. (Education Code 56171; 34 CFR
300.131)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a budget for the provision of services to children with disabilities
enrolled by their parents/guardians in private school based on the proportionate share of federal funds received and
the number of eligible children, including the possibility of mid-year enrollees, and the types of services to be
provided.



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Regulation 6164.41: Children With Disabilities Enrolled By Their Parents In Private School Status: ADOPTED
Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2007 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 07/01/2016

Definitions

Parentally-placed private school children with disabilities means children with disabilities who are voluntarily enrolled
by their parents/guardians in a private school or facility within district boundaries, including children who are
attending a private school or facility within district boundaries but who reside in another district or state. (34 CFR
300.130, 300.131)

Private school or facility means a private full-time day school, including a religious school, located within district
boundaries, that has filed an affidavit with the California Department of Education pursuant to Education Code
33190 and is registered in the California Private School Directory.

Consultation with Private School Representatives

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with all private school representatives and representatives of
parents/guardians of parentally-placed private school children with disabilities during the design and development of
equitable services for the children. In order to ensure a meaningful and timely consultation, the consultation shall
include: (Education Code 56301; 20 USC 1412(a)(10)(A)iii); 34 CFR 300.134)

1. The child find process and how parentally-placed private school children suspected of having a disability can
participate equitably

2. The manner in which parents/guardians, teachers, and private school officials will be informed of the child find
process

3. The determination of the proportionate share of federal funds available to serve parentally-placed private
school children with disabilities and how this share is calculated

4. How the consultation process among district staff, private school officials, and representatives of parents of
parentally-placed private school children with disabilities will operate throughout the school year to ensure
that identified children can meaningfully participate in equitable services

5. The provision of equitable special education and related services including how, when, and by whom such
services will be provided including a discussion about the types of services, alternate service delivery
mechanisms, how services will be apportioned if funds are insufficient to serve all of the identified children,
and how and when those decisions will be made

6. In the event that the district and private school disagree on the provision of or the types of services, how the
district will provide the private school officials with a written explanation of the reasons that the district chose
to not provide the services

When meaningful and timely consultation has occurred, the district shall obtain a written affirmation signed by the
representatives of participating private schools. If the private school representatives do not provide the affirmation
within a reasonable period of time, the district shall forward documentation of the consultation process to the
California Department of Education. (Education Code 56172; 20 USC 1412; 34 CFR 300.135)

After the consultation has occurred, the district shall ensure an annual count of the number of parentally-placed
children with disabilities attending private schools located within the district. This count shall be conducted between
October 1 and December 1 each year and shall be used to determine the amount the district must spend on
providing equitable services to the children in the subsequent fiscal year. (34 CFR 300.133)

Provision of Services

A child with a disability parentally-placed in a private school has no individual right to receive some or all of the



special education and related services that would have been received if enrolled in public school. Such a child may
receive a different amount of services than students with disabilities in public schools. (34 CFR 300.137, 300.138)

The district shall evaluate all identified parentally-placed private school children with disabilities for purposes of
considering them for equitable services. This evaluation shall be conducted in accordance with the timelines and
procedures for evaluating public school students with disabilities pursuant to 34 CFR 300.300-300.311 and as
specified in BP/AR 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education, including obtaining
parent/guardian consent and providing the parent/guardian with a copy of the procedural safeguards notice. (34
CFR 300.131, 300.504)

If the child resides in the district and is eligible for an individualized education program {IEP), the district shall make a
free appropriate public education (FAPE) available to the child. However, the district is not required to develop an
IEP if the parent/guardian makes clear the intention to keep the child enrolled in private school. In such situations,
the district shall obtain written certification confirming the parent/guardian's intention to keep the child enrolled in
private school, including the fact that the parent/guardian is not interested in the development of an IEP or the
district's offer of FAPE. If the parent/guardian does not provide confirmation in writing, the district shall obtain oral
confirmation of the parent/guardian's intention and confirm the conversation in writing.

If the child resides in a different district, then this district and the district of residence shall work together to ensure
that the parent/guardian receives an offer of FAPE in accordance with law.

The district shall develop and implement for each identified child with a disability enrolled by their parents/guardians
in a private school within the district's boundaries an individual services plan (ISP) that describes the equitable
services that the district will provide, as determined by the district after the consultation process with private school
representatives. (34 CFR 300.138)

The ISP shall be developed, reviewed, and revised consistent with 20 USC 1414. A representative of the private
school shall be invited to attend each ISP team meeting. If the representative cannot attend the meeting, the district
shall use other methods to ensure the representative's participation, including individual or conference calls. (34 CFR
300.137, 300.138)

The district may provide services on the private school premises, including a religious school, to the extent consistent
with law. The services shall be provided by personnel meeting the same standards as personnel providing services in
the public school except that private elementary school and secondary school teachers who are providing equitable
services to parentally-placed private school children with disabilities do not have to meet the special education
teacher qualification requirements specified in 34 CFR 300.156. The personnel shall either be district employees or
contractors of the district. (34 CFR 300.138, 300.139)

The district shall offer transportation to the child if services are provided on a site other than the child's school and
the ISP team determines that transportation is necessary for the child to benefit from or participate in the services
provided in the ISP. Depending on the timing of the services, the district shall provide transportation from the child's
school or home to the service site and from the service site to the child's school or home. (34 CFR 300.139)

The district may place equipment and supplies in a private school for the period of time necessary to provide the
services pursuant to the ISP. All such equipment shall remain the property of the district and must be able to be
removed without remodeling or causing damage to the private school. The district shall remove the equipment
when no longer required by the child, when the child no longer attends the private school, or when removal is
necessary to prevent unauthorized use. (34 CFR 300.144)



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 6164.5: Student Success Teams Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 09/01/1990 [ Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 03/01/2004

The Governing Board encourages the collaboration of parents/guardians, certificated and classified staff,
administrators, and/or the student, as appropriate, in evaluating the strengths and needs of students having
academic, attendance, social, emotional, or behavioral difficulties and in identifying strategies and programs that may
assist such students in maximizing their potential. The Superintendent or designee shall establish student success
teams (SST) as needed to address individual student needs.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a process for initiating the referral of students to SSTs,
which may include referral by district staff, parents/guardians, and/or agency representatives. The Superintendent
or designee may also establish and maintain a process for responding to SST referrals, which may include a
determination by the district as to whether an 55T shall be convened for an individual student.

Each SST may collect and analyze relevant student data, as appropriate. The SST may also review the student's
educational history, work samples, strengths and areas for growth, and identify available resources and strategies.

Each SST shall develop a plan to support the student which incorporates intervention strategies. Such strategies may
include changes in program placement or instructional methods, recommendation of supplemental educational
services, parent involvement strategies, social, emotional and/or behavioral interventions, discipline, referrals to
other agencies or resources, and/or other appropriate interventions.

The SST shall monitor the student's progress, evaluate the extent to which the recommended strategies have been
implemented, make adjustments to the plan, and develop additional interventions as needed.

The SST process shall not delay or deny a referral for evaluation for eligibility for special education, as may be
required under state or federal law.

The Superintendent or designee may integrate SSTs into the district's multi-tiered system of support, including
identification of students who need additional support, the level(s) of support, appropriate interventions, monitoring
of progress, and whether the goal of intervention has been met.

To strengthen the effectiveness of SSTs, the Superintendent or designee may provide staff development in the
identification of students who may need additional support, implementation of measurable and targeted
interventions, and monitoring of progress and goal attainment.



Board Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Regulation 6164.5: Student Success Teams Status: ADOPTED

OrigIm;I Adopted Date; 09/01/1990 | Last Revised Date: 09/23/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 03/01/2004

Team Membership

Members of individual student success teams (SST) may include:

1.

2.

3.

The principal or designee

One or more of the student's classroom teachers or former teachers

The student's parents/guardians

The student if appropriate

School Counselor(s)

Resource personnel or specialists, such as a school psychologist, nurse, outreach consultant, special education
resource person, department chairperson, speech and language specialist, reading specialist, social worker,

probation officer, community resource representative, mental health worker, and/or other person(s) relevant
to the student's situation, as determined by the district

The makeup of each individual SST is at the district's discretion, and may not include participation from individuals in
each of the categories listed above.

Team Responsibilities

The principal or designee shall:

1.

2.

Schedule meetings and establish meeting procedures

Contact parents/guardians and other team members regarding team meetings

Consult with appropriate school staff, including teachers and/or district resource personnel
Arrange for observation of the student as needed

Collect any additional background information necessary to inform team members about the student's
strengths and needs, such as relevant student data, educational history, and work samples, as appropriate

Help the student and parents/guardians prepare for the meeting
Facilitate the team meetings
Develop a plan to support the student which incorporates intervention strategies

Ensure that the student's progress is monitored, that follow-up meetings are regularly scheduled, and that
adjustments are made to the plan and related interventions as necessary



teacher recommendations, as well as information about the student's physical condition, social or cultural
background, and adaptive behavior. The group shall ensure that the information obtained from these sources is
documented and carefully considered. (34 CFR 300.306)

When making a determination of eligibility for special education and related services, the district shall not determine
that a student is disabled if the primary factor for such determination is a lack of appropriate instruction in reading,
including the essential components of reading instruction pursuant to 20 USC 6368, lack of instruction in
mathematics, limited English proficiency, or that the student does not otherwise meet the eligibility criteria.
{Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.306)

The normal process of second-language acquisition, as well as manifestations of dialect and sociolinguistic variance,
shall not be diagnosed as a disabling condition. (5 CCR 3023)

Independent Educational Evaluation

An independent educational evaluation is defined as an evaluation conducted by a qualified examiner who is not
employed by the district. (34 CFR 300.502)

Public expense means that the district either pays for the full cost of the IEE or ensures that the evaluation is
otherwise provided at no cost to the parent/guardian. (34 CFR 300.502)

The parents/guardians of a student with a disability have the right to obtain an IEE at public expense under the same
criteria, including the location of the evaluation and the qualifications of the examiner, that the district uses for a
district-initiated evaluation. (34 CFR 300.502)

The parent/guardian is entitled to only one IEE at public expense each time the district conducts an evaluation with
which the parent/guardian disagrees. (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502)

If a parent/guardian has requested an IEE, the district may ask for the reason that the parent/guardian objects to the
district's evaluation. However, the parent/guardian is not required to provide an explanation and the district may not
unreasonably delay either providing the IEE at public expense or filing a due process complaint to request a due
process hearing to defend the public evaluation. (34 CFR 300.502)

Upon receiving the request for an IEE, the district shall, without unnecessary delay, either: (34 CFR 300.502)
1. File a due process complaint to request a hearing to show that its evaluation is appropriate

2. Ensure that an IEE is provided at public expense, unless the district demonstrates at a hearing that the
evaluation obtained by the parent/guardian did not satisfy the district's criteria

If a due process hearing decision determines that the district's evaluation is appropriate, then the parent/guardian
may obtain an |IEE but not at public expense. (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502)

In any decision made with respect to providing FAPE to a student with a disability, the result of any IEE obtained by
the student's parent/guardian shall be considered by the district if it meets district criteria. Any such result also may
be presented as evidence at a hearing on a due process complaint. (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502)

Reevaluation

A reevaluation shall be conducted when the district determines that the educational or related service needs of the
student, including improved academic achievement and functional performance, warrant a reevaluation or if the
student's parent/guardian or teacher requests reevaluation. Such reevaluations shall occur every three years, unless
the parent/guardian and district agree in writing that a reevaluation is unnecessary. A reevaluation may not occur
more than once a year, unless the parent/guardian and the district agree otherwise. (Education Code 56043, 56381:

34 CFR 300.303)

The district shall ensure that any reevaluations of the student are conducted in accordance with the evaluation
procedures pursuant to 34 CFR 300.304-300.311. {34 CFR 300.303)



performance, communicative status, self-help, orientation and mobility skills, career and vocational abilities and
interests, and social and emotional status. When appropriate, a developmental history shall be obtained. For
students with residual vision, a low vision assessment shall be provided in accordance with guidelines established
pursuant to Education Code 56136. The district shall ensure that the evaluation is sufficiently comprehensive to
identify all of the student's special education and related service needs, whether or not commonly linked to the
disability category in which the student has been classified. (Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.304)

As part of the initial evaluation and any reevaluation, the |EP team and other qualified professionals shall, if
appropriate, review existing evaluation data on the student, including evaluations and information provided by the
parents/guardians, current classroom-based local or state assessments and classroom-based observations, and
observations by teachers and related services providers. On the basis of that review and input from the student's
parent/guardian, the team shall identify what additional data, if any, are needed to determine: {Education Code
56381; 34 CFR 300.305)

1. Whether the student is a student with a disability, or in the case of a reevaluation, whether the student
continues to have a disability, and the educational needs of the student

2. The present levels of academic achievement and related developmental needs of the student
3. Whether the student needs, or continues to need, special education and related services

4. Whether any additions or modifications to the special education and related services are needed to enable the
student to meet the measurable annual goals set out in the student's IEP and to participate, as appropriate, in
the general education curriculum

If a student has transferred from another district in the same school year or leaves this district, the district shall
coordinate with the student's prior or subsequent district as necessary and as expeditiously as possible to ensure
prompt completion of full evaluations. (34 CFR 300.304)

Evaluation Report

The personnel who evaluate the student shall prepare a written report of the results of each evaluation. The report
shall include, but not be limited to, the following: {Education Code 56327)

1. Whether the student may need special education and related services

2. The basis for making the determination

3. The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the student in an appropriate setting
4. The relationship of that behavior to the student's academic and social functioning

5. The educationally relevant health, developmental, and medical findings, if any

6. For students with learning disabilities, whether there is such a discrepancy between achievement and ability
that it cannot be corrected without special education and related services

7. A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage, where
appropriate

8. The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for students with low incidence disabilities,
consistent with Education Code 56136

Eligibility Determination

Upon completion of the administration of assessments and other evaluation measures, a group of qualified
professionals and the parent/guardian shall determine whether the student is a student with a disability as defined in
5 CCR 3030 and 34 CFR 300.8 and, if so, the student's educational needs. In interpreting the data, the group shall
draw information from a variety of sources, including aptitude and achievement tests, parent/guardian input, and



Kashia School District
31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax

Budget Updates February 9, 2022

Revenue:

8xxx $ 826 Increase EPS & Taxes

83-85 $40,834 One Time Grants (see attached)
86-87 $ 3,220 Increase to Donations & Misc Income

Sub Total $44.880

Expenditures:

1XXX (25,461) Decrease to Teacher Salary

2XXX (20,000) Decrease to Aide Salary

3XXX (21,157) Decrease to Payroll Benefits

4XXX $13,006 Increase for One Time Grant Supplies
5XXX $39,763 Increase for One Time Grant Services

Sub-Total $13,849
TOTAL $58.729

Line E, ColumnD = $85,134 February 9, 2022 Change in Fund Balance
(26,405) December 2021 Change in Fund Balance
$58.729

NOTES:

Budgeted one-time grant expenses many need to move categories once actual expenses are
known.

Superintendent/Principal contract needs to be updated in order to include additional time
worked due to staffing shortage.



2021-22 Second Interim

Kashia Elementary General Fund 49 70888 0000000
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
| Board Approved | Projected Year Difference % DIff
Object Orlginal Budget | Operating Budget [ Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes {A) | (B) ~_(C) (D) (E) (A
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 213,422,00 219,460.00 133,390.47 220,286.00 | 826.00 0.4%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 106,797.00 119,522.00 64,550.00 | 119,522.00 | 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | 8.000.00 8,000.00 39,81304 4883400 40,834.00 510.4%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | 105,941.00 99,087.00 105,067.18 | 102,307.00 | 3,220.00 3.2%
~ 5) TOTAL, REVENUES 434,160.00 446,069.00 342,810.69 490,949.00
i |
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 86,576.00 | 85,643.00 36,888.38 1 60.182.00 25,461.00 29.7%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 44,786.00 | 56,445.00 17,932.85 36.445.00 20,000.00 | 35.4%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 46,427.00 40,900.00 10,607.90 19,743.00 21,157.00 | 51.7%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | 19.575.00 24,161.00 8,197.21 37,167.00 | (13,006.00)  -53.8%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 210,101.00 212,515.00 107,773.12 | 252,278.00 (39‘?63_.00}' -18.7%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 | 0.00 8,896.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 ! 0.00 000 | 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES | 407,465.00 | 419664.00 | 190,295.46 405,815.00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A6 - BS) o 26,695.00 26,405.00 | 152,515.23 | 85,134.00
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES |
1) Interfund Transfers |
a) Transfers in 8900-8929 - 0.00 | 0.00 _0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.0%
b} Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
|
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 | 0.00 0.00| 0.00 ~ 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 - 0.00 - 0.00 | 0.00 | 000 0.00 | 0.0%]
3) Contributions 8980-8999 __0.00 0.00 000, 0.00 000 | 0.0%
|
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES I 0.00 0.00 | 000 | ~0.00 | L | N
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 1 Printed: 2/1/2022 10:57 AM



2021-22 Second Interim

Kashia Elementary General Fund 49 70888 0000000
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 01]
Revenues, Expendltures, and Changes In Fund Balance

| Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (E/B)
Description N Resource Codes Codes A) (B) {C) (D) (E) {F)
|
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
~ BALANCE (C + D4) | 26,695.00 26,405.00 152,515.23 | 85,134.00 | N
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance |
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 388,138.00 430,964.00 ’ 430,964.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 | 0.00 | | 0.00 _0.00 0.0%
¢) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) ~ 388,138.00 430,964.00 430,964.00 |
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00| 0.00 0.00 000  00%
) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 1 388,138.00 _ 430,964.00 { 430,964.00
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E ¥ Fle) 414,833,00 457,369.00 | 616,098.00
Components of Ending Fund Balance | I
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 - 0.00 0.00 0.00 |
Stores 9712 | 0.00 0.00 , 0.00
Prepald Items 9713 - 0.00 - 0.00 | 0.00
All Others ar1e 000 0.00 | 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 | 0.00
¢) Committed f
Stabllization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 B 0.00 |
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 { 0.00
d) Asslgned
Other Assignments 9780 ~ noo 000 | 0.00 |
|
) Unassigned/Unappropriated !
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 L 71,000.00 71,000.00 | | _ 71,000.00 {
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 | 343,833.00 386,369.00 445,098.00 |

Callfornia Dept of Education
SACS Flnanclal Reporting Software - 2021,2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/20/2021) Page 2 Printed: 2/1/2022 10:57 AM



P6g<cs

c60‘vg

966°5T§

I[qereay

[AYA LY

otl$

Yoo‘vg

too‘tvg

Juadg

Surpasuno) ‘9
surergoad/seotadp 11 °S
S[eLIo]eW [EUONONLISU] ‘b
S9IIAISS JIUIOPBIY €
Jeak/ABp [00TDS POpUIIXY ‘T
SSO[ SUrLIBYT 1

Jouereg
seaIe pajoedull IO "OT
SdHI anpIoao Rdmo) 6

SJH] 0] SunTem sjuspmys SUISSISSY ]

puy pryod "L
uonpnysut uosiad ur Sunioddns -9

uononnsur Apenb y3iy S
Spasu [BUONIOUID [BIDOS b

SJUIPIIS JO SPoU OTepeIk JUISSOSSY S

syroddns J01ARY2( SAIIISO] "
$901A19S X 1oddng [euonIppy ‘T

aouereyqg

Juswdojeaap POOYPTIYD A[IeH '8
SoIpn3s JIURY L

juatudofaasp [euUOISSaJ0Id ‘9
dJeWII [0OYDS dANISO{ S
11oddns euonoury/eroos v
Surures| pajeIa[edoy ‘€
UONONNSUL PIUSI[Y PIepuelS's
Surrojuay /SuTyor0) 1

aouereyg
suroddng Suturesy *9
Jess 1o Suturery, °S
[991/qn{ Arunurwo) ‘b
Aep popuedxy "¢
SJUIpIIS I0J ABP INOY 6 T
SHSV T

saInjrpuadxy pasoiddy

THLATANOD

TELTS :paAIdIaY
uofeSy sSoT SutuIey] 91els

193pnq arepdn 0] paaN

Y6Q82$ :paaeoay
A19A000y Surures] pH [erads

198pngq sepdn 03 pasN

998°C$ PaAIdY
JURIL) SSOUIATIORJJH 10)ednpy

198pnq a1epdn 01 paaN

alep 0] 005 LT$ PIATEIIY
(Quern Yoo[g SsauARIIPH 103eONpY)
1ueln Anumizoddo Surures] papuedxy

OPLL JURID

cELTS

r6gc$

zeg'y ¢

000°‘0S$

junoury
JIRIn

0g0g/E1/L
oghL

1208/Ve/8
£L£S9

99¢9

1202/9%/01
0092

Iedx

apoo
90IN0SY



0g8€‘C ¢

26598

TLSvg

powpdumo)

og asuereyqg
Surures| papuedxy ‘1

000‘9%
0009 ¢

souereqg

woddns 11/yusmdolaasp [euolssajoiq ‘S
S[eLve N v

Surrony, "€

[ooyos Journs /own SUTLIEa] PapuslXy 'S
S[esur/syoeus/AI19A0091 SunLIes 1

og souereyqg
syorus/sfes|y °¢

uononxsul uosiad ujy '3

dIAQD Jo s1oedr 10 Jor[a1 LouaSIow ‘T

souereq

uoneNues (qQIAQD) Sunsa], ot
11oddns ewmeiy, -6

S[edN '8

Juawrdo[aAsp [euOISsaJoId "L

198pnq ayepdn 0} paaN

08E‘C$ :paAIRINg
sTeuorssojordered OTH

198pnq ajepdn 0} paaN

265‘21$ :paaladay

(OT4) yuexH Sutures] Arunyroddp pspuedxy
198pnq a1epdn 0] paaN

1LSV$ :paAladay
JURID UOMINOSU] UOSID U

08E‘C$

°6GcI$

LS

1303/S/V
gchL

120g/St/v
Sebs

120g/S/v
gehl



STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Certified Public Accountants Stephen Roatch - President
Habbas Nassar - Vice President

January 18, 2022

Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
P.O. Box 129

Stewarts Point, CA 95480

Year 1 of 3-year contract

This letter confirms that Kashia Elementary School District has requested our firm to perform only the audit
services described in this letter and has not requested our firm to provide any specific internal control
review or fraud audit service. This letter also confirms our understanding of the terms and objectives of our
audit engagement and the nature and limitations of the services we will provide.

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Kashia Elementary School
District for the years ended June 30, 2022, June 30, 2023, and June 30, 2024. We will audit the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information,
including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of Kashia Elementary School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022. Accounting
standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary
information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Kashia
Elementary School District's basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to
Kashia Elementary School District's RSl in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance. The following RSl is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1. Management's discussion and analysis

2. Budgetary comparison information

3. Schedules of the proportionate share of the net pension liabilities
4. Schedules of contributions

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies
Kashia Elementary School District’s financial statements. We will subject the supplementary information to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a report
combined with our auditor's report on the financial statements.

The Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis will not be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor's report will not provide an opinion or any assurance
on that other information.

PO Box 2986 M Folsom, CA 957632160 W Phonc (015 9685080 B T ax (916) 066-3815



Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
January 18, 2022

Page Two of Eight

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and
to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the 20271-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, prescribed in the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, section 19810 and
following, and will include tests of the accounting records of Kashia Elementary School District and other
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report
upon completion of our audit of Kashia Elementary School District’s financial statements. Our report will
be addressed to the Governing Board of Kashia Elementary School District. We cannot provide
assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary
for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are
other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If circumstances occur related to
the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of
a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements caused by error, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment prevent us from completing
the audit or forming an opinion on the financial statements, we retain the right to take any course of
action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or
withdrawing from the engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will
include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing
of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other
purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Kashia Elementary School District is subject to an
audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Audit Procedures - General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
January 18, 2022

Page Three of Eight

Audit Procedures - General (Concluded)

We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting,
(3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to
the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because
the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect
auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable risk exists
that some material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations
of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors,
fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also
inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that
come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the
period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as

auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of
receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding
sources, creditors, and financial institutions, as applicable. We will request written representations from
your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the
conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities
for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and
other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures - Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to
test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and
fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements
resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an
opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that
are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing
Standards.



Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
January 18, 2022

Page Four of Eight

Audit Procedures - Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of Kashia Elementary School District's compliance with the provisions
of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit
will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our
report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes, management’s discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, depreciation schedule, schedules of the proportionate share
of the net pension liabilities, schedules of contributions, and supplementary schedules and information
(nonaudit services), as applicable, of Kashia Elementary School District in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not
constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with
applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services
previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any
procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities
to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and
ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is
also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application
of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all
accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us
with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, including identification of all related parties and all related-party
relationships and transactions, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit,
and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken
as a whole.



Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
January 18, 2022

Page Five of Eight

Management Responsibilities (Concluded)

As part of our engagement, we may propose standard, adjusting, or correcting journal entries to your
financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding the nature of any
proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1)
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of
your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, or contracts or grant agreements that we report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our
report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have
reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements
with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are
responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with
GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior
period; and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from
those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible
for providing management'’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as
your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that

information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related
notes and any other nonaudit services (management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison
information, depreciation schedule, schedules of the proportionate share of the net pension liabilities,
schedules of contributions, and supplementary schedules and information, as applicable) we provide.
You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with
preparation of the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provided
and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes and any other
nonaudit services we provided prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further,
you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those
services; and accept responsibility for them.



Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
January 18, 2022

Page Six of Eight

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of
your key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that your personnel will
cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving
supporting documents, and preparing confirmations. If for whatever reason your personnel are
unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the
work we have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an
increase in fees over our original fee estimate.

You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If this
occurs, we will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated
fees. We also may issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services. In the absence
of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services, our services will
continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

In accordance with Education Code 41020, audit reports will be filed with the County Superintendent of
Schools, the California Department of Education, and the State Controller's Office by December 15%
following the close of the fiscal year. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Stephen Roatch Accountancy
Corporation and constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and
regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in
a timely manner to the State Controller's Office or its designee, Department of Education, a federal
agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of
a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will
notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under
the supervision of Stephen Roatch Accountancy Corporation personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we
may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may
intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other

governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the
report release date or for any additional period requested by the State Controller's Office. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Habbas Nassar, Certified Public Accountant (CPA) is the engagement partner and is responsible for
supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. Our
fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs. Our standard hourly
rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel
assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and
are payable on presentation. We agree that our all-inclusive fee will be $15,750 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022, $16,300 for June 30, 2023, and $16,850 for June 30, 2024. The above fee is based on
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not
be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and
arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. An additional fee will be charged for
attending meetings with the District's Board, if deemed appropriate.



Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
January 18, 2022

Page Seven of Eight

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other (Concluded)

Either party may terminate this agreement at any time for any reason, providing 30 days written notice is
given to the other party. It is understood that payment shall be made for services rendered to the point of

termination.

It is agreed that the District will withhold ten (10) percent of the audit fee until the State Controller certifies
that the report conforms to the reporting provisions of the 20271-22 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting.

In accordance with Education Code Section 14505, it is further agreed that the District will withhold fifty
(50) percent of the audit fee for any subsequent year of a multi-year contract if the prior year's audit
report was not certified as conforming to reporting provisions of the 2021-22 Guide for Annual Audits of
K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting.

The State Controller of California has required that all Districts and auditors contracting for multi-year
engagements include a stipulation that the contract is null and void if the auditor is declared ineligible to

perform LEA audits,

In the event that the GASB, FASB, AICPA, GAO, OMB, or the Education Audit Appeals Panel's Office
issues additional standards or audit procedures that require additional work during the audit period, we
will discuss these requirements with you before proceeding further. Before starting the additional work,
we will prepare an estimate of the time necessary, as well as the fee for performing the additional work.
Our fee for addressing the additional requirements will be our standard hourly rates for each person
involved in the additional work.

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email transmission. As
emails can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended
third party, or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such
parties, we cannol guarantee or warrant that emails from us will be properly delivered and read only by
the addressee. Therefore, we specifically disclaim and waive any liability or responsibility whatsoever for
interception or unintentional disclosure of emails transmitted by us in connection with the performance of
this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage to any
person or entity resulting from the use of email transmissions, including any consequential, incidental,
direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure or
communication of confidential or proprietary information.

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to
consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.

In the event we are required to respond to a subpoena, court order or other legal process for the
production of documents and/or testimony relative to information we obtained and/or prepared during the
course of this engagement, you agree to compensate us at our applicable hourly rates, for the time we
expend in connection with such response, and to reimburse us for all of our out-of-pocket costs incurred

in that regard.



Management and Governing Board of
Kashia Elementary School District
January 18, 2022

Page Eight of Eight

In the event that we are or may be obligated to pay any cost, settlement, judgment, fine, penalty, or
similar award or sanction as a result of a claim, investigation, or other proceeding instituted by any third
party, then to the extent that such obligation is or may be a direct or indirect result of your intentional or
knowing misrepresentation or provision to us of inaccurate or incomplete information in connection with
this engagement, and not any failure on our part to comply with professional standards, you agree to
indemnify us, defend us, and hold us harmless as against such obligations.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer
review report and any subsequent reports received during the contract period, if requested. Please
contact us if you would like us to provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report
and any subsequent reports received during the contract period.

This engagement letter is contractual in nature and includes all of the relevant terms that will govern the
engagement for which it has been prepared. The terms of this letter supersede any prior oral or written
representations or commitments by or between the parties. Our audit engagement ends on delivery of
our audit report. Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new engagement. The
terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, specific engagement letter for
that service. In the absence of any other written communication from us documenting such additional
services, our services will continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Kashia Elementary School District and believe this letter
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. |If, after full consideration, you agree

that the foregoing terms shall govern this engagement, please sign this letter in the spaces provided and
return the original signed letter to our office, keeping a fully-executed copy for your records.

Sincerely,

STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Rovobie Nassa—

Habbas Nassar, Certified Public Accountant
Vice President

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Kashia Elementary School District.

Management - Approved by: Governing Board - Acknowiedged by:

“Lari Trenplin LN Aa A itove

e =

Title: O BO BeardPresident M

e T4 P 1 5905




